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Incorporanon and other information-
Supply Chain Coordination Limited ("the company or "SCCL") was incorporated on 25 July 2017 as Friars 728 °
Limited. With effect from 15 November 2017, the company changed its naime to Supply Chain Coordination
Limited. These company financial statements are presented for the year ended 31 March 2019. Comparatives are
presented for the peuod from mcorporatlon to 31 March 2018, which have not been subject to audit.
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Supply Chain Coordination Limited
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer's Report

Welcome to the 2018/19 Annual Report and Accounts for Supply Chain Coordination Limited ("SCCL"), the
. management function of the NHS Supply Chain. Thxs 1ep01’t xeﬂects our progress durmg the first year of trading
. under the new operating model.

SCCL commenced operations in April 2018 to manage the Future Operating Model of the NHS Supply Chain,

'wokag on behalf of the NHS Business Services Authority ("NHS BSA"). NHS Supply Chain manages the .

sourcing, delivery and supply of. healthcare products, services and food for NHS trusts and healthcare
- organisations a¢ross England and Wales. Previously the NHS Supply Chain contract was operated as a single
" contract. The Future Operating Model redefined how such a service could be improved, by engaging with
specialist category procurement organisations, and segménting the provision of logistics and IT services. From
‘that vision, SCCL was established to manage the new operating model, ongoing performance of service

providers, and to provide a single face to the customer. The vision for the business is to be an extended part of .

Trust Procurement Teams, working collaboratively with customers, to deliver products at best value, that are fit
for purpose, safe for patients, and support improved clinical outcomes. By increasing customer use of NHS
Supply Chain from 40% to 80% of the market, SCCL intends to deliver £2.4bn in savings over 5 years, whlch
will directly benefit Trusts and ﬁonthne se1v1ces

In 2018/19 SCCL was respons1ble for the management of the N'HS Supp]y Chain whxle ‘the operational activity

and subsequent financial result of trading was reported under thé NHS BSA. This set of financial statements

. therefore reflect that management activity but from the year ending 31 March 2020 they will 1eﬂect both the
. management and tradmg as the trading act|v1ty migrated to SCCL on 1 April 2019. .

Long Term Plan ,

"Aligned to the NHS England Long Term Plan (published January 2019), SCCL is looking to actively evolve its
business model to support the transition of the health system to deliver Integrated Care Systems ("ICS"), and
support a greater focus on population health management. Over the course of its first year.of operation, SCCL
has established important foundations on that journey, including collaboratioris with national initiatives- to
reduce duplication and variation in procurement activities across the health system to help improve the delivery
of patient care. : :

Customer Centricity

At the heart of the new operating model for the business, is a focus on our customexs, being able to offer

improved services, better value for money, eliminating duplication of effort within customer organisations, and

working collaboratively. During 2018/19, SCCL commenced work to refine the vision, mission and values for
the organisation to reinforce our customer focus. In parallel, work commenced on a three-year transformation

" journey, enabled by fundamental change in IT systems, which will further enhance services provided: to
customers. ’ :

2018/19 Achievements :
All achievements below are as a consequence of SCCL, workmg on behalf of the BSA, managing NHS Supply
Chain. During its first year of operation, SCCL has overseen substantial transition activity, both within the

SCCL organisation, and as the new partner providers took over the operations from the previous incumbent

_ provider. In parallel, the business has enhanced its customer focus, and delivered savings back to the frontline of
the NHS. Some SCCL principle achievements of the year are included below: .

Customer
* Managed the delivery of annuallsed savmgs of £194m

+ Managed the growth of market share by 12% over the year '

+ Overseeing customer satisfaction scores, with a strong Net Promoter Score of +34 and customer satlsfactlon
score of 8.5 out of 10 at 31 March 2019 .

+ Implementing a new account” management process with customers workmg more transparently and
collaboratively, deploymg resources in line w1th customer needs
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Supply Chain Coordination Limited

Chairman and Chief Execut:ive Officer's Report (continued).

Fmance
+ During 2018/19 -SCCL had undertaken substantial transmon actxvnty in advance of taking over the NHS
- Supply Chain from.1 April 2019 . v

+ Through operating strong financial governance, SCCL has managed costs during 2018/19 to come in at
substantially lower than expected for the year while delivering the Future Operating Model

' Procurement and Supplier Management

. Intcgnated the operations of 10 new Catégory Tower Service Providers ("CTSPs") over the course ‘of
2018/19 (one had previously transitioned during 2017/ 18) Savmgs from the CTSPs were delivered in line
with targets set at the start of the year

« Tendered 47 new frameworks, and novating approx1mately 5,000 contracts, enablmg all customers to access
.the benefits from such frameworks : :

« ' Delivered a project to pass on products to customexs at cost from April 2019

+ Embedded robust suppllel management processes allowing for a two-way dialogue w1th key suppliers

Supply and Dzstrtbutlon
+ Concluded the transition of the new national logistics operations to the new service prov;der in Feblualy
2019 '

* Sustained consistently high levels of service aBove targets of 98%

« Continued working towards Mcdicnl'Device Regulation compliance, with full compliance due by May 2020 '

Clinical and Product Assurance

+ Established a new Clinical and Product Assurance ("CaPA") function to support the assurance of newly
procured products under the new operating model, bringing consxstency and safety across the 11 Category
Towers

¢ Launched the Assurance framework supported by wider NHS partners and trained the CTSPs on how to use
the framework . . .

+ Supported national initiatives for wound care and continence, working as part of the national leadership team

» . Supported the introduction of HealthTech Connect to our supplier and customer base, as a way to bung :
eVIdence backed innovation at scale to our customers working across the Health and Care system

Systems and Data -
* Transitioned over 2,300 users to the new IT mfrast1 ucture supportmg NHS Supply Cham workmg with the
new IT service provider

.+ .Delivered a range of projects to conclude the integration of the new elements of the NHS Supply- Chain-
operating model, and to provide new facilities for the business, for example business inteiligence solutions”

« Launched the start of a three-yeal transformation journey to replace the Order Management, Warehouse
Management and Enterprise Integration components of the core NHS Supply Chain systems, staltmg with
the development of a model ofﬁce due for.launch in June 2019

People and Governance
+. Having established the legal entity in 2017, over 250 people have been transferned or recruited into SCCL. A
- new office in Nottmgham in the East Midlands was opened, which became operational in September 2018

. Launched core HR pohcles and processes to underpin the new sceL organisation, across the areas of
hamlng, performance management, recruitment, remunelatlon onboarding a.nd orgamsatlonal structure

. Engaged with the wider organisation to define a new set of Vision and Values for the orgamsatlon
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Supply Chain Coordination Limited

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer's Report (continued)

Recruited a new chair and three new Non-Executive Directors to the board with one Non-Executive Director

recruited in May 2019, and two more Non-Executive Directors appointed in July 2019. A new Chief

Financial Officer joined the company in December 2019.

- Other areas of note

GCF procurement project of the year - the project team were proud to be awarded bést commercial project of
the year from the Government’s Commercial Function, competing in a category with 20 shortlisted
submissions, in recognition of the early achievements of'the new operating model °

EU Exit - as.part of NHS England and Department of Health and So_bial Care ("DHSC") planning to support
the NHS through the process of EU Exit, NHS Supply Chain has supported several key activities to deliver
core components of the solution, supporting Trust and supplier preparations as appropriate

Alongside the achievements SCCL also had to overcome some major challenges which had an impact on
delivering all elements of the operating mode! within 20]8/ 19, these included:

Delays in finalising and approving of the Supporting Teclmology and Logistics Final Business Cases and
preparation of a response to the legal challénge referred to below, as well as the strategic change to insource

Transactional Services resulted in resetting the original programme completion tlmelme by six months from

October 2018 to March 2019

Successfully defendmg a legal challenge to the awald of the Logistics contract from an unsuccessful bidder.
This delayed the contract start date until the end-of August 2018 (against an orlgmal plan of June 2018) and
compressed the subsequent | tiansmon period.

" TUPE transfer of Finance staff on 1 April 2019 from DHL to SCCL, at the same time as VAT and Buy Price

= Sell Price implementation, not long after NAO audit and at the same time as year-end processing.

IT transition on I February 2019, transfer of services, assets, licences and staff from DHL to DXC and
SCCL. .

Logistics transition on-24 February 2019, transfer of services and staff, physical assets, bulldmg leases and
contracts from DHL to Unipart and Movianto, just ahead of expected EU Exit on 29 March 2019.

Home Delivery Service experiencing initial issues during the first few days of start-up in February 20 19.

Looking ahéad - : : )
Whilst much has been achieved during the first year of transition, the target of delivering £2.4bn savings back to

the

NHS frontline over 5 years, will continue to drive further ambition and change both the way NHS Supply

Chain operates, and the way it engages within the healthcare system. Financial, operational and demographic
changes continue to ‘bring pressure to our core customer base further reinforcing the imperative of the
organisation to achieve its objectives. -

Looking ahead to 2019/20, SCCL has stated a clear set of objectives in the annual plan:

M
(2
-3
4)
®

Deliver system benefits: deliver a minimum of £150m mcremental in-year savings

Serve our customers: grow revenues and attain 50% market share

Assure quality: clinically assure all new or re-procured frameworks

Balance finances: balance our investment and operational expenses w1thm our resource allocation

Build a capable or. gamsatlon. proactively engage our colleagues
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Supply Chain Coordination Limited
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer's Report (continued)'

- (6) " Transform our technology: transform our information technology systems to support delivery of our strategy

To achieve these objectives, we need to kéep focused on meeting customer needs, resolving their challenges, and -
listening to them as we develop services for the future. As the NHS landscape evolves, we-need to remain
responsive to those changes, be open in our approach, and drive the business forwards to deliver on the promises we

made.

Approved by the Board on 9 January 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Jim Spyitle’
Chairman

- Jin-Sahota
Chief executive
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Supply Chain Coordination Limited

Board Members

" James Spittle, Chairman

James (Jim) Spittle was appointed as our first mdependent non-executive Chair in September 2018. Jim has
enjoyed a highly successful career as a retailer for over 20 years working in retail operations, procurement and
supply chains. He has worked for leading brands, spending many years w1th Tesco ple, before moving to
Kingfisher where he spent eight years as Group Supply Chain Director.

Since 2001, he has held several executive roles and non-executive director roles, including at Cranfield
" University Advisory Board, the Chartered Institute of Logistics and Transport and as Chair of GS1 UK. A
global alliance that is recognised in 112 countries, GS1 UK has 28,000 member companies lepresentmg
virtually every sector of the UK economy langmg from multinationals and the NHS to SMEs.

Jin Sahota, Chief Executive Officer ‘

Jin joined the Department of Health in February 2016 and led the Procurement Transformation Programme,
operating across the NHS Supply Chain to develop the Future 'Operating Model. Jin has worked across a range
of sectors within global organisations, holding senior board level positions in operations and end to-end supply
chain roles at Technicolor, Honeywell, Motorola and Psion.

Before joining the Department Jin was Senior Vice President Worldwide Operations at Technicolor Connected
Home, based in Paris. He started his professional- career with Psion Plc, working as their Operations and
Business Manager for six years. Jin moved to Motorola, then Honeywell Electrical Devices and Systems as’
Head of Sourcing before leaving after two years to join Technicolor. .

Jin has a MSc. in Operations Managemen;.ﬁ'om London Thames University, a Post Graduate Diploma in
Management Studies from Portsmouth University, and is a Member of the Chartered Institute of Purchasing and
Supply and the Chartered Management Institute. :

Colin McCready, Chief Financial Officer

Colin joined SCCL as its Chief Financial: Officer in December 2019. Colin joins from NHS Professionals (CFO' -

and most recently- interim CEO) where he led a transformation programme, delivering revenue growth,
improved service delivery through technological investment and a more customer-focused organisation.

Prior to NHS Pxofessnonals Colin held senior finance roles at public sector outsourcer Serco and professional
services provider Control Risks.

A Chartered Global Management Accountant (CGMA) and Chartered Institute of Management Accountants

(CIMA) Colin holds a Bachelor of - Commerce (Fmance Spemahty) achieved at Queens University m Ontario,
Canada.
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Supply Chain Coordination Limited

Board Members (continued)A

- . :

Professor Heather Tierney-Moore OBE, Non-Executive Director

Heather Tierney-Moore has worked in healthcare for over 30 years, initially training as a Reglsteled General
Nulse

] Most recently, Heather was Chief Executive of Lancashire Care NHS Foundation Trust, retiring in March 2019
after ten years in post. She has extensive clinical experience and has held a wide range of clinical leadership
roles including Chief Nurse at Sheffield Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and Nurse Director of
Lothian NHS Board. Heather is- currently Non-Executive Director for Community Integrated Care, a role she
has held since 2016 and was Non-Executive Director of NHS Confederation from 2014-2016. She has also
worked at national level on England and Scotland.

Heather Tlemey—Moore was made Officer of the British Empire for services to Healthcate by the Queen in
December 2001. :

. Steven Glew FCA, Non-Executive Director .

Steven Glew is an experienced Finance Director with a wide range-of experience coverlng retail, lClSUlc and
support services business. This broad experience includes supply chain, property, IT and HR leadership together
with international business development. In 2006 Steven joined UKMail Group plc and in over ten years helped
develop the business into the: leading competitor to Royal Mail in the UK Postal market. His extensive
experience of turnaround and growth situations ‘started in 1994 -as Finance Director of Tesco stores where he
helped drive their transformation to leading UK retailer.

His non-executive experience includes helping guide the successful IPO of Supeigroup ple, acting as CHairman
of the Audit Committee and membership of the Remuneration Committee.

Heather Benjamm, Non-Executive Dlrecton

Heather Benjamin has led companies -and served on Boards of Dm:ctors of private and commercial companies,
not-for-profit organisations, and associations including regulated environments, This includes Cheque and
Credit Clearing, Portsmouth Water and Walsingham Support. With expertise in logistics and supply chain for
_international supply chains along with her skills in developing and implementing strategies that grow revenues
and funds and are outcome and high performance focussed, will reinforce the commercial expertise currently
sitting within NHS Supply Chain. Durmg her time as Chief Procurement Officer at Centrica, Heathér helped
drive transfonmatlon of £10 billion per annum spend.

In 2016 Heather was 1dent1ﬁcd as ‘one of the "lop 100 Womcn to Watch’ by Cranfield Umvensnty research

programme.
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Supply Chain Coordination Linljted

Board Members (continued)

Melinda Johnson, DHSC Commexcnal Director-

Melinda Johnson joined the Department of Health in June 2017 as. Commercial Director following a period of
five years as Group Commercial Director at the Department for Transport. Whilst at Transport Melinda was also
Director of Property, Digital, Security and Information. Melinda joined the Civil Service in 2005 to be a Deputy
Director in Commercial at the Department for Education where she held various commercial roles.

Melinda is a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Procurement and Supply (CIPS). Melinda’s early buying career
was in IT procurement in organisations such as National Power. Melinda has worked in the wider public sector
as well as being Head of Policy at CIPS for three years. An advocate of CIPS, Melinda completed four yeals on
. the CIPS Board, following her role on CIPS Councx] and was Chair of CIPS.Congiess.

Melinda holds an MBA and has a post graduate quallﬁcatlon in Marketing. She is a Non—Execu‘nve Director of

~ the British Quallty Foundatlon

Robert Houghion, Non-Executive Director for Technology and Innovation

Rob has spent over 20 years working in IT and change management in telecoms and financial services and holds

a BSc (Hons) in Information Technology. Previous roles have included Software Development for BT, senior
management positions with CSC in the UK, Middle East and Afiica and Aviva in the UK and US. He has seven
"years’ experience at board level and an established track record of success in leading major transformatlonal
change .

Most recently Rob took on the role of Gloup Chlef Information Officer and Business Change Director for the
"Post Office. This involved a strategic assessment of a programme to replace technology across the entire estate -
a transformation of the largest retail network in Europe. Rob also revxewed the securlty and audit processes,
: establlshmg a robust operating model and implementation team. -

Rob isa legulal speaker at technology and cyber secur 1ty events around the- world,

Dr Emlly Lawson, Director

Emily joined NHS England as National Dlrectm for Transformation and Corpomtc Operatlons in November '

- 2017. Responsible for a range of enabling corporate functions which support the effectiveness and efficiency of
NHS England with a focus on leading the nansfoxmatlon agenda for the organisation.

' Working to transform the way NHS England and NHS Improvement work together to provide smgle system

leadership.to the NHS, Emily is leading an ambitious programme to align leadership and collectlve resources

around a shared set of pr 1ormes that will add’ the ‘most value to the NHS.

A ‘Molecular Genetmst by background Emily has led a number of large-scale organisational change
programmes. Before joining NHS England, Emily was Chief People Officer at Kingfisher plc where she was
part of the international leadership team. Prior to that, she was Group HRD at Morrisons and spent 15 years at
McKmsey, where she woxked across a number of sectors leadmo transfonmatlon

Emily is also Deputy Chair of the 30% club, which aims to increase zepresentatlon of women on UK plc boards, -

and to research and support greatex dlvelslty in'the UK and global mstxtutlons
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Supply Chain Coordination Limite‘d

Board Members (conﬁinued)

Miranda Carter, Director .

Miranda Carter' is cunently Director of Provider Transformation at NHS England and NHS Improvement
. Miranda joined Monitor in 2004 where she was responsible for the assessment of NHS foundation trust
applications and reviewing NHS mergers & acquisitions: More recently she has taken responsibility for the
provider transformation and provider policy teams within NHS England and Improvement focusing on the
development of the provider sector within systems to support ‘the delivery of the NI—IS long term plan
commltments -

A qualified chartered accountant, Miranda started her career at Deloitte working in the UK and Hong Kong. In
1997 she joined PricewaterhouseCoopers and spent four years in the Transaction Services Department in
. London focusing on due diligence assignments. Her portfolio of financial experience is wide-ranging and
includes mergers and acquisitions, due diligence and initial public offeririgs ("IPOs").
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Supply Chain Coordination Limited
Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

The NHS . currently spends £5.7bn on medical devices and clinical consumables. Lord Carter’s report
‘Unwarranted variation: A review of operational productivity and performance in NHS Acute Hospitals’
reviewed operational efficiencies in the NHS providers and recommended "improvements in the way NHS
chooses, uses and purchases clinical supplies.

SCCL,. the management company for the NHS Supply Chain, was establlshed to manage the delivery ard
. performance of the service providers making up the new operating model SCCL’s strategy is to be an extended
part of Trust procurement teams, working for the NHS to collaboratively deliver improved quality and cost of
services. SCCL aims to deliver £2.4bn savings over five: ‘years for the NHS using the following approach:

« Using world class category management, mc]udmg clinical product evaluatlon and assurance, in the
procurement of goods

T Extractmg and creating value by using innovative sourcing strategies

* . Ensuring price transparency .through eliminating operatmg margin ‘and passing on prices agreed with
suppliers to NHS Trusts

-+ Inturn, doubling the proportion of consolidated procurement for in scope cate‘gories from 40% to 80%

Our ability to deliver on this strategy will be influenced by our ability to work closely with our customers,
delivering a service that meets the breadth of their clinical and non-clinical needs, as well as havnmr a clear
value proposition for supplicrs. For customers, our intent is to provide:

< Best value products, delivered reliably, ready for customer use _
.« An eagy to use, clinically assured product catalogue, that reflects the needs of clinicians and patients

« A collaborative, transparent way of engaging with the orgamsatlon supported by mdrvndual Trust account
plans .

» A service provrded for the NHS by the NHS, that aligns w1th national, reglonal and local objectives across
the system as it evolves .

For our suppllers we intend to pxovrde .
» A consolidated, simplified way of engaging across the NHS, reducing supplier costs to operate

+ Support for bringing new innovative products into the NHS, enabled by our connectrons with national and
regional entities

"« Ahighly resilient and robust supply chain to get supplier products to market

~* A structured approach to supplier relationship management, supportmg two-way dialogue for suppliers to
improve their understanding and highlight issues

As SCCL, we have utilised a best of breed approach to evolving the NHS Supply Cham w01kmg with partners
with specialist industry éxpertise, incéntivising and supporting them to support the dellvery of the business
objectrves

We'are in the early stages of executing our strategy, with some key building blocks having been enabled during
2018/19. We remain committed to delivering our objectives and supportmg our frontlme NHS colleagues.

Financial Review

.. :Financial results are shown in thé Income Statement on page 34. The company had a profit | before taxatlon of

£nil (period ended 31 March 2018:-£nil).

Financial position is shown in the Statement ot; Financial Position on page 35. As at 31 March 2019, the
company had net assets of £21m (2018: £1).

Cash flow performance of the company is shown in the Statement of Cash Flows .on page 36. For the year ended "

31 March 2019, the company had net cash inflow of £158m (period ended 31 March 2018: inflow of £1)

primarily relating to funding received in advance of 2019/20 which will be used to fund working capital.

-Key Performance Indicators ("KPIs") .
N Page 10



Supply Chain Coordination Limited
Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

The company did not have any KPIs for the financial year ended 31 March 2019 or for the penod ended 31 -
March 2018. The Board have reviewed operational KPIs assocxated with the NHS Supply Chain during the year.”

From 1 Apnl 2019, several financial and non-financial KPIs are being used to help measure business
" performance. These KPIs are associated with. the operational management of the NHS Supply Chain, and
include KPIs such as savmgs aclueved :

Risk Management C )
The company’s approach to risk management is discussed in the Governance and Risk Report on pages 17 to 23.

Approved by the Board on 9 January 2020 and signed on its behalf by: -

_.J in Sahota
Chief executive
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Supply Chain Coordination Limited

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

The directors present their annual report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Principal activity

The principal activity of the company is the management of the NHS Supply Chain operating model as an agent
for the NHS BSA. NHS Supply Chain supports the NHS and other healthcare organisations in England and
Wales by providing end to end supply chain solutions: The management function manages the performance.of
the 11 category tower service providers along with the logistics -and IT providers. SCCL will leverage the
collective buying power of the NHS to prov1de clinically assured products at the best value to meet the diverse
needs of NHS organisations.

Incoxpmatlon and other information

The company was incorporated on 25 July 2017 as Friars 728 Limited. Wlth effect from 15 November 2017, the

company changed its name to Supply Chain Coordination Limited. These financial statements are presented for
- the year.ended 31 March 2019. Comparatives are presented for the period from incorporation to 31 March 2018.

Directors of the company
The directors, who held office during the year, were as follows:

James Spittle - Chairman (appomted 17 September 2018) .

- "Jin Sahota - Chief executive

Heathgr Benjamip (appointed 1 December 2018)

Steven Glew (appointed 1 December 2018)

Michael Hyne A(appoin.ted lt.leune 2018 and resigried 31 May 2019)
Melinda Johnson ' . ’

Jeremy Marlow (resigned 11 July 2019)

Heather Tierney-Moore (appointed 1 December 2018)

Timothy Nolan (appointed 3 April 2018 and resigned 26 November 2018)
Michael Parr (resigned 30 August 2018)

© - Paul West (resigned 14 June 2018)

The followmg directors were appointed aﬁel the year end:
Robert Houghton (appointed 1 May 2019)

Miranda Carter (appointed 26. July 2019)

Emily Lawson (appointed 26 July 2019)

Colin McCready (appointed 3 December 2019)

The details of Board Directors who held office during the period and their remuneration are shown in the
Remuneration Report on' pages 24 to 29.

A register of Company Directorships and.other significant interests held by Board members, whlch may conflict
with their management responsibilities, is maintained by the company. The register is updated as and when
members advise the Company- Secretary of any changes in their circumstances. A positive signed declaration is
made each financial year.

Details of indemnitiés provided to the Directors are included in the Governance and-Risk Report on pégcs 17 to.
23. : i

Dividends.
Page.12



Sup-.ply Chain Coordination Limited
Directors’ Repoft for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 (continued) .

. The directors recommend a final dividend payment of £Nil be made in respect of the financial year ended 31
. March 2019.

Share capital :

On 3 April 2018, the company issued £13m of share capital. A further £8m of share capital was issued on 28
March 2019. These shares were issued at par for cash consideration. The company is wholly owned by the
Secretary of State for Health and Social Caxe

Business review

Fair review of the business

The company's financial results are shown in the Income Statement on page 34. -

A review of the business -and future developments is included in the Chauman and Chief Executive Officer's
Repon on pages 2 to 5 and the Strategic Report on pages 10 to 11.

A review of the company's key financial and other performance mdlcators during the year is included in the
Strategic Repont

Governance, internal controls and risk management

The Board accepts and acknowledges that it is both accountable and responsible for-ensuring that the company
has in place appropriate and effective systems, procedures, policies and processes for internal-controls.

Throughout the period covered by this report and up to the date of this report the Board believes that there have

been appropriate governance and risk management frameworks in place. Where frameworks need to be more

" robust to maintain effective internal controls the Board has implemented additional processes whilst these
frameworks are fully implemented and .embedded. :

Further information is disclosed in the quernancé' and Risk Report on pages 17 to 23. -

Political and-charitable donations
The company has not made any political or charitable donations during the current or prior period.
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Supply Chain Coordination lelted

Directors' Report f01 the Year Ended 31 March 2019 (contmued)

Employees

The company is committed to openness and transparency. Employees have access to information regarding
company policies, busiriess performance and other matters of concern to them as employees. The views of
employees are considered when making decisions that might affect their interests through a néwly established
Colleague Engagement Forum. '

. All employees have access to a pen51on scheme. Details of the penslon arrangements are set out in Note 17 to -
the financial statements. : .

Equality and diversity :

The company maintains a policy of employing the best candidates available in every position, regardless of
gender, ethnic group or background. This includes €quality in recruitment and ongoing promotion within the
company.

The company supports the recruitment of staff with disabilities having full regard to their aptltudes and abilities.
The company will offer individual support to staff who become disabled during their employment and, where
approprlate offer opportunities for retraining and rédeployment.

Pension liabilities ‘

Details of the pension liabilities and admmxstratlon of the pension schemes are shown in Note 17 to the
accounts. Further details on individual Directors' pensions and the associated schemes can be found in the
. Remuneration Report on pages. 24 to 29. .

Research and development 4
The company does not enter into research and development activities.

“Gomg concern : .
The company's business activities, together w1th the factors likely to affect its future development and

performance are set out in the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer's Report and the Strategic Report. The

financial position of the company, its cash flows, l|qu1dlty position and borrowmg facilities-are described in thc '
financial statements. .

The company is wholly owned by -the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care, who has provided a
Revolving Credit Facility to the company, which is not repayable until 30 September 2020 and is likely to be
- extended for a further year. In addition, the company will receive funding from the Depanment of Health for the
foreseeable future. '

The Directors believe that the company is well placed to manage its business risks successfully. Hav‘ing
reviewed the company's current financial position, cash flow projections and loan facilities, the Directors have a
reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. For this reason, the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the fi nancial statements. - :

Important non adjusting events after the financial period

On 1 April 2019, the assets, liabilities, obligations and rights of the NHS Supply Cham managed by DHL
Supply Chain on behalf of the NHS BSA were transferred to SCCL. The objective of this transfer was to
implernent the optimum performance of the NHS Supply Chain’ through exploiting the collectlve bargaining
power of the NHS.
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“Supply Chain Coordination Limited
Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

On 13 September 2019, the company repaid £40m of the loan balance due to the Secretary of State for Health
and Social Care. Following this repayment, the principal of the loan was £102m.

" Disclosure of information to the auditor - .
In the case of each director in office at the date of approval of this Director's Report:

+ so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditors are.
unaware; and :

« they have taken all steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of any .
relevant audit information and to establish that the company's auditors are aware of that information.

-

Approved by the Board on 9 January 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

%

Jin Sahota
* Chief executive
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' Supply Chain Coordination Limited
; . Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

- The directors are.responsible for preparing'the Annual Report and the ﬁnanc1al statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each ﬁnanc1a| year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting

" Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. Under company law the directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the
directors are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;
* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- state whether applicable International FinancialiReporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union (EU) have been followed, sub_|ect to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements; and

*. prepare the financial statements on the gomg concern basis unless it is mappropuate to presume that the -
company will continue in business..

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explam the
.company's_transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are.also
responsible for safeguarding the assets- ‘of the company and hence f01 taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities. .

" The directors are responsible for the maintenance and mteguty of the corpoxate and financial information
included on the company's website. Lcmslatlon in the United ngdom governing " the preparation and
" dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

The diiectors consider that the annual report and financial statements, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and
understandable and provide the information necessary for the shareholder to assess the company 's position and
performance, business model and strategy. :

" The directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge

s the financial statements, which have been piepared in accoxdance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a
“~true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial pesition and profit and loss of the company; and

* the Strategic Report and Directors' Report include a fair review of the development and performance of the
business and the financial posmon of the company, together with a descrlptlon of the principal risks and.
uncertamtles that it faces.

By order of the Board:

Jin Sahota
‘Chief execitive
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Supply Chain Coordination Limited -

Governanceé and Risk Report

The company is committed to achieving high standards of business integrity in all its activities and is
- accountable to the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care in this respect.

The -company'is not required to comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code, September 2016 (the Cade),
however the Board lecogmses that this represents good practice and seeks to comply with the Code in so far as
is practicable.

The Board . .
-The Board sets the strategic direction of Supply Chain Coordmatlon Lxmlted and works to improve the success
of both the company, and its members as a whole.

As a unitary Board, all directors are involved in, and responsible for leading and steering the company on
business strategy, develgpment, oversight and control, and corporate governance. The Board also sets the
strategic aims, ensuring that resources are available to ‘en‘able the company to meet its objectives.

The Board delegates day-to-day responsibility to Exécutive Management, aithough a number of matters are
reserved for the Shareholder and/or the Board. The Board has sufficient engagement with the business to allow
it to lead the company with an in-depth understandmo of its strengths and capabilities, and the challenges it
faces. .
The Boa:d and the Shareholder reviewed the financial delegated lesponsibilities within the governance structure
to ensure that'there is sufficient oversight of all key aspects of the busmess with well-established reportmg lines
and accountability.

The Shareholder and/6r the Board apbrove:
« the annual business plan; '

+ the annual budget; and

. nnatters of major strategic importance.

The Board also oversees operational and financial performance, risk management and internal controls,
compliance and major policy issues and the corporate risk register on a regular basis. ‘

There are two Board Committees that support the work of the Board and enable Non-Executive Directors to |

share their expertise more widely with the Executive and Senior Management Team. A Non-Executive Director
. chairs each of the Board Committees. The work of the Committees continues to be reviewed to ensure that they
focus on strategy, .policy and governance, and add value and expert knowledge and oversight to these areas.
Committee terms of reference have been reviewed and approved by each Committee.

Set out below is a summary of the role and composmon of the Board and its - Commlttees w1th details of
membelsh(p and attendance.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors are responsible for developmg strategy and leading the company to achieve long-term
SUCCESS.

The Board comprises the Chairman, Shareholder Director Representative, two directors appomted by NHS
- Improvement, three independent Non-Executive Directors and thé Chief Executive Officer. A Chief Financial
Ofﬁcer and three Non-Executive Dnectom have been appointed following the year end.

The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved for the Shareholder which are outlined within the Amcles

of Association. The Board retains responsibility for strategic, major financial and key" operatlonal issues.

Defined terms of reference have been approved for the Board and each of the Board Committees. Formal

dotumentation of powers delegated to Executive Directors and clear reporting lines ensure that the Board

- receives all relevant information about the business, and that decisions are made by people at the right Ievel with
the authori ity to do so. . .
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Supply Chain Coordination Limited
Governance and Risk Report (continued)

Membership and attendance: There were six scheduled Board meetings. Heather Benjamin (3/3), Steven Glew .-
(3/3), Michael Hyne (3/5), Melinda Johnson (6/6), Jeremy Marlow (5/6), Tim Nolan (3/3); Michael Parr (2/2),
Jin Sahota (6/6), James Spittle (4/4), Heather Tierney-Moore (3/3), Paul West (1/1)

*Attendance is shown in brackels against the available meetings that members could attend

Remuneration and Benefits Commztlee

The Committee reviews and agrees reward policy prmcnples for all people and Executive Remuneration and
appointments as required and make recommendations -to the company on all aspects of the performance,
remuneration and terms of service.

Membership and attendance: Heather Bcnjamm (2/2), Shar cho]der Representative, Melinda Johnson (2/2) and
Heather Tierney-Moore (2/2).
*Attendance is shown in brackets against the available meetmgs that members could attend.

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee are responsible for the oversight of financial and narrative reporting, intetnal
control, risk management systems, internal and external audit processes.

The Conimittee has an annual cycle of business to €nsure that all aspects of the duties are covered. The
Committee also reviews the Annual Report and other published information for regulatory compliance. It
assesses the pelfomlance of the external auditors annually. It also monitors the external auditors’ independence.

The main responsibilities of the Commlttee are:

< to monitor the integrity of the company’s financial statements, processes and systems internal and external
audits and compliance and whistleblowing procedures; and :

“ to make 1ecommendatlons to the Board on' the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control and risk
management systems. .

A Membership and attendance Steven Glew (2/2) (Chair), Mrchael Hyne (2/2) and Heathcr Tlemey-Moore (22'2)
*Attendance 1s shown in brackets against the available meelings that members could attend .

Executive Team

The Executive Team is respansible for the ongomg management of the company, consxdermg day- to—day
operational matters for running the busmess .

The Executive Team meets monthly and reviews pelformance of mgmﬁcant programmes to ensure nsks are
managed. :

Membelshlp all Executive Directors (mcludmg -Chief Executive Officer) and chaired by the Chief Executrve B
Ofﬁcer

Board composntlon : ’ ’ )
At 31 March 2019, the Board compused of the Chairman, Shaleholder Director, three Non-Executlve Drrectors
the Chief Executive Officer and two Directors appointed by NHS Improvement

" The Board is supported by an Exetutive: Team which includes eleven executives. The dlversrty and- exper ience
of the Board and Executive Team are essential to the effective leadership and success of the company. The
biographies of the Board members are shown on pages 6 to 9, and demonstrate a range of corporate, financial
and NHS experience relevant to the company’s business.

The. Board held six meetings during the year. All members of the Board are- supplied in advance with”
appropriate, clear and accurate information covering matters which are to be considered.
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Supply Chain Coordination Limited
Governance and Risk Report- (continued)

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are distinct and have been agreed by the Board. The
Chairman chairs the Board and general meetings of the company, sets the agenda of such meetings and
promotes the highest standards of integrity, probity and corporate governance throughout the company. He
ensures_ that the Board receives timely and clear information, communicates éffectively with-the Shareholder
Director, Shareholder and significant customers, and facilitates- the effective contribution of Non-executive
Directors and constructive relations between Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

The Chief Executive Officer is accountable for the day-to-day management of the company.

Board diversity _
Appointments are made first and foremost based on merit, using objective criteria and taking into account the
recognised benefits of all types of diversity and inclusion. The Board will continue to ensure this is taken into
account when considering any new appointments. This is supported by the terms of reference of the
Remuneration and Benefits Committee which state that potential candidates for the Board should be considered
on merit and against objective criteria with due regard for the benefits of dlvelsny and inclusion on the Board,
including gender.

Subject to that overriding principle, the Dlrectors believe that the Boards perspective and approach can be
greatly enhanced through gender, age and cultural diversity. The Chair, together with members of the
Remuneratlon and'Benef its Committee, evaluates the composition and range of skills on the Board. :

Board changes

During 2018/19, there were a number of changes to ‘the Board reﬂectmg that the company was becommg
operational. Having been appointed as an interim Non-Executive Director, Tim Nolan resigned on the
appointment of the three new Non-Executive Directors (Heather Benjamin, Steven Glew and Heather
Tierney-Moore). James Spittle was appointed as Chair on 17 September 2018. Paul West resigned as one of the
NHS Improvement appointed directors and was replaced by Michael Hyne in June 2018 and Michael Parr left
the company, and therefore the Board, in August 2018.

A further three non-executive directors have been appointed since the year end (Roben’t Houghton Miranda
‘Carter and Emily Lawson), with Michael Hyne and Jeremy Marlow having resigned in May and July 2019
respectively. In addition, Colin McCready _|omed the company in December 2019 as Chief Financial Ofﬁcer

~ Directors' conflicts . )

~ The Companies Act 2006 provides that directors must avoid a situation where they have, or can have, a direct or
indirect interest that conflicts, or possibly may conflict, with a company's interests. Any potential conflict of
interest between the role of an officer working for the Departmcnt of Health and Social Care or NHS
Improvement and their role as either a Director or his or its representative in the company is reglstelcd and *
managed in an appropriate way.

Where potential ¢onflicts exist, these are recorded in the Board or Bo‘ard Committee minutes, along' with any
appropriate action taken to address them. All Board members have completed the Register of Directors'
' Interests . ‘

.

Dlrectors and Officers' liability insurance .
Supply Chain’ Coordination. Limited.is a member of the NHS Risk Pooling Scheme which includes Directors’
. and Ofﬁcens liability as petmmed by the Companies Act 2006.

Openness and transparency

The company s whistleblowing policy has been in place since September 2018. A 24-l1our confidential reportmc
line is in place so that our people can raise concerns at any time. .
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Supply Chain Coordjnation Limited

Governance and Risk Report (continued)

" Risk governance
The Board is responsible for the company’s systems ‘of internal control and risk management and for reviewing
each year the effectiveness of those systems. Such systems-are designed to manage, rather-than eliminate, the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives. The system can provide only reasonable, and not absolute,
- assurance against material misstatement or loss. The process in place for reviewing the systems of mternal
control includes procedures designed-to 1dent1fy and evaluate failings and weaknesses. :

The Audit and Risk Committée is responsible for overseeing the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems and regularly assess the’ pr1nc1pa| risks facing the company.

Risk management framework : ‘

Risk management is the formal process of identifying and mitigating risk. It enables us to identify the possibility
of future events happening which will impact the achievement of objectives, as well as the controls in place to
mitigate this and develop action plans which- will enable us to make better business decisions that take into
account the effect of uncertainty (positive or negative). .

The company is committed to cr eating and enabling a risk management culture that seeks to enhance the value
delivered to customers, posmon the company for growth and protect our reputation. Thinking about risk
consciously and managing it in a planned and effective way will suppoxt our objective of delivering a
consxstently good service. .

As’this was our first year of operation, we have developed our risk registers and lepomng structures wnth tlle
support of the Audit and Rlsk Comnmittee, and these will contmue to be developed during the next financial -
- year. .

Corporate risks are reviewed at Board level and are a consideration when producm° documents for all Board
level and Executive Committees. :

The Executive Management team is responsible for delivering the company’s strategy and managing risks -
which may prevent this being achieved. The Executive Management team 4n turn place reliance on their teams
to monitor and manage operational risks on an ongoing basis, as well as identifying emerging risks.

Functional risk registers provide a framework for people to feed into this process, recognising their shared
. responsibility for effective. management of risk in delivering our strategy. At an operational level, risks are
reviewed together with the level of control necessary to mitigate, where’ possxble the level of risk.

The financial impact of certain risks has been transferred through insurance arrangements. The company isa
member of the NHS Resolution Risk Pooling Scheme (Préviously NHS Litigation Authonty) which covers
thnd party and employer liabilities, and property- related risk exposure.

- Principal risks : : : :

During the financial year ending 31 March 2019, the primary focus for the management team were those
principal risks which related to the programme to transition the new operating model and the set-up of the
company as a stand-alone legal entity, rather than the more traditional operational business risks. The executive
team actively managed these risks through to the point of successful transition and.the principal risk-register
now reflects operational risks which are being managed. Amongst the prmclpal risks actlvely managed through
the last financial year were risks associated with:

« the move.to the buy price = sell price model;

+ the change in VAT status and the implications for customers;
« the transition of the logistics service to a new prov1de1 and

. 1nsufﬁc1ent cash flow for the business.

In addmon the company actively managed the usl(s assomated from the UK’s then planned exit from the EU
~and the implications of that for the supply cham :
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Supply Chain Coordination Limited
' Governance and Risk Report (contin‘ued)

In the financial year commencmg 1 April 2019, we have been managing a more normal set of operational
business nsks

Financial nsk management
The company’s cash assets are held within the Government Banking Service. The company does not hold
investments other than cash and does not utilise financial instruménts in its operations.

The company’s trade receivables are with a small number of customers which are mainly government funded
entities.

The company manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring cash flow requirements .and managing the -
borrowings under the flexible loan facility provided by the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care.

Internal controls
The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the
achievement of the policies, aims and objectives of the company.

During 2018/19, the organisation has undertaken significant transformation. Internal controls have been in place

to ensure compliance by staff of all applicable polices. A team has been set up to manage this on a day-to-day

basis including the-use of a quality management system. This should ensure that the internal controls in the next
financial year are more robust. :

SCCL have appointed internal auditors and we have agreed a schedule of work for 2019/20.

_ The Audit and.Risk Committee monitors ‘the effectiveness of controls through the receipt of written and verbal
reports from functions, Executive Team members, Internal Auditors and the External Auditors as appropriate.

Internal audit .
Internal audit plays a key role in providing independent assessment and challenge of the governance, risk and
internal control frameworks at Supply Chain Coordination Limited.

We have appointed the Government Internal Audit Authority- as our internal auditors, suppoxted by KPMG.
They have developed an internal audit plan for the year ending 31 March 2020. They have not been involved in
the company during the year ending 31 March 2019. .

Internal Audit will piov1de update reports to each Audit and Risk Committee with key findings fiom completed -

. reviews as well as an update on the status of implementation of agreed management-actions. Further, they will
provide an annual report in relation to the organisation's framework -of govemance risk management and

internal control. :

Fraud detection and mvestlgatlon :

Fraud is a pervasive corporate problem, affecting organisations of all sizes. The cost of fraud can be very high,

both' from actual money lost .and the consequent erosion of public confidence. It is best practice that

.ot gamsations have a framework for ensuring that fraud is prevented as far as possible, and that any fraud that

". does occur is detected quickly and dealt with appropriately. .

Our strategy is desxgned to redice SCCL’s exposure to risks of internal fraud and support our external chents to
reduce fraud and the resulting losses. We achieve our aims through.three key themes: Acknowledge, Prevent
and Pursue. These themes exist within the overall context of an anti-fraud culture promoted by SCCL through
its leaders, governance arrangements and general approach to fraud. - .
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Supply Chain Coordination Limited
. Governance and Risk Report (continued)

- Acknowledge - Acknowledging and understanding fraud risks:
+ Committing support to tackling fraud.

. Bemg clear on what we are seeking to combat - we are clear about what constitutes fraud, bribery, theﬂ and
_ financial malpractice/irregularities. .

+ Assessing and understanding the risks - we are proactive in assessmg and responding to the rlsks of fraud
and corruption to wh1ch SCCL is exposed :

Prevent - Pleventmg and detectmg fraud:

+ "Having an effective anti-fraud culture - we take a professional, integrated and proactive approach to
countering fraud and are clear about the roles and responsibilities of our staff, partners and contractors.

» We have a framework which udd‘erpins the operation of SCCL and has a number of elements which exist to
help protect SCCL against fraud. This includes documented policies and procedures to guide behaviour.

*- Awareness training is essential in ensuring that staff understand the importance of tackling fraud, are able to
recognise fraud.and abuse, and know how and where to report suspicions of fraud. Continuous and active
promotion of SCCL's robust stance against fraud and corruption should also be made to members of the
public, contractors and partners to whom we work w1th to deliver services. :

+  Making use of mformatlon andtechnology. .

Pursue - Being robust in pursuing and punishing fraud and }ecdven'ing losses:

+ Taking integrated action to investigate fraud.

. Pursu.ing appropriate and proportionate sanctions to punish those committing fraud.
+ .Seeking redress to recover losses. -

+ Learning from our experiences and those of others and takmg remedlal and positive action to 1mprove
controls to prevent future fraud losses.

+ Collaborating with otheangenCLes including the police.

Information governance and General Data Protection Regulation ("GDPR")

The protection of the information under SCCL’s Governance is a critical aspect of the success of the new NHS
Supply Chain arrangements. The business benefits of implementing and maintaining an appropriate level of
.information security good practice is recognised as a key business driver. It enables SCCL and the NHS Supply
Chain to deliver the required benefits through the uninterrupted services that it provides, reassures users and
patients that peisonal data entrusted to the NHS Supply Chain by them is kept secure and used appropriately,
avoids reputational damage and the payment of penalties, or additional costs, resulting from.an incident caused
by poor information security practices, and demonstrate to peers, including customers, ‘the NHS and
Government autharities, that the organisation is meeting legislative and Governance requirements.

Working with the constituent parts of NHS Supply Chain, SCCL reviewed the controls inherited at transition”
and is implementing a strategic programme to improve security maturity using a process of continuing
improvement. Using an effective control. framework, users are made aware of their roles, responsibilities and
accountabilities and on-going education maintains a level of awareness of the need for Information Secunty as
an integral part of the day-to-day business.

The control framework targets good practice.and leverages the global security experience and insight of DXC as
our IT Service Partner, guidance issued by NHS Digital and recommendations fromi the National Cyber Security
Centre. Risk management techniques are used to Valldate control selection and Threat Intelligence is utilised to -
focus priorities. .

The company is registered as a Data Contro[ler with the Information Commissioner and complies with the’
. legislative requirements. There were no significant reportable information incidents during the year.

‘Slavery and Human Trafﬂcking Statement
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Supply Chain Coordination Limited
Governance and Risk Report (continued)

The company fully supports the Government’s objectives to eradicate modern slavery and human tlafﬁcking
* and recognises its role in both combatting it and supporting victims. We are strongly commltted to ensuring our .
supply chains and business activities are free from ethical and labour standards abuses.

We confirm the identities of all new employees and their right to work in the United Kingdom, and our policies
additionally give a platform for our employees to raise concerns about poor working practices.

Our employees can raise concerns about inappropriate activity with us directly and confidentially through the
Whistleblowing Policy. We consider any concerns for further investigation and offer support to 1nd1v1duals that
have suffered fi scal or professional detriment as a result of whistleblowing. -

Our pxocurement approach follows good practices such as the Crown Commercial Service standard, which
includes a mandatory exclusion question regarding the Modern Slavery Act 2015. When procuring goods and
services, we expect our suppliers to comply with the Modern Slavery Act 2015.

This statement is made pursuant to section 54(1) of the Modcrn Slavery Act 2015 and apphcs to Supply Chain
Cooxdmatlon Limited.
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Supply Chain Coordination Limited
Remuneration Report

~ Remuneration Pollcy :
" This Remuneration Report covers members of the Supply Chain Co- ordmatron Limited Board. The following
elements of the Remuneration Report are subject to audit: :

» Salaries (including performance pay) and allowances

+ Compensation for loss of office

"+ Non-cash benefits

* Pension contributions
» Contract length A
+ Amounts payable to third parties for the services of senior managers

The Articles of Association state that the Secretary” of State for Health and Social Care, or any senior civil
servant acting with the Secretary of State's authority, must approve all appointments to the Board. The Secretary
of State is represented by the Shareholder Director and their nominated representatives from the Department of
Health and Social Care. Nominated individuals who support the work of the Board and its Comnuttees are
* recorded in the Governance Report. .

‘The Remuneration and Benefits Committee keeps the Board’s skill and experience base undér continued review,
oversees searches and selection processes for new Directors and recommends riew appointments to the Board.
The remuneration and terms and conditions of the Chair and all Directors are approved by the Shareholder,
taking into account relevant market data and benchmarking against other similar positions.’

During the year, there have been five Board - Director appointments that have been managed through open
competition - the Chair and four Non-Executive Directors. A firm of recrujtment consultants managed the
appointment process of the Chair and Non-Executive Directors. .

. The Remuneration and Benefits Committee oversees appropriate contractual arrangements for our people. The
Committee met twice during the financial year and was chaired by Heather Benjamm Commercial -
Non-Executive Director. . :

In May 2018, the Shareholder Director and Board approved revised delegated financial limits. Remuneration
approval for all Directors and people earning more than £150,000. base salary per year is reserved to the .
Secretary of State for Health and Social Care or any senior civil servant acting with the Secretary of State ]
authority. .

Executive salaly surveys and periodic assessmems are conducted by mdependent remuneration consultants.
Affordability is also taken into account. Uplift to salary for Directors is approved at the Remuneration and
. Benefits Committee whrch is attended by the Shareholder Director Representative.

SCCL is not bound by NHS pay-scales; however, we are currently expected to implement the pay award
decisions within the NHS framework for transferred staff on NHS terms. Salary awards and terms and
conditions applying to NHS staff groups were applied in-year followmg the acceptance of changes to the
Agenda for-Change ﬁamework .

There are 205 staff who transferred fr om DHL NHS Supply Chain to SCCL at various points through the year
who have annual bonus and commission-related pay scheme in place. These arrangements are subject to various
performance criteria and will be payable on achievement in June 2019, related to the 2018/19 financial year

People appomted post 1 Aprrl 2018 have béen employed on company terms and condmons of service.
Company structure

The company’s organisation structure was established from 1 April 2018 and during the year has been resourced
through TUPE transfers from NHS BSA, DHL NHS Supply Chain and new hires.

. The Executive Team regularly reviews the existing operating model to ensure that it is able to dehver the
ongomg strateglc priorities of the company.
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Supply Chain Coordination Limited -

Remuneration Report (continued)

. Service contracts

The individual contracts for Non-Executive Directors-set out the fees and duration for their term of office. Fees
are not pensionable. There is also no compensation provision for early termination. Notice per 1ods are shown in
the table below.

. Date of . 2
Appointment as  Unexpired
Company  Term (months)

Director : Director as at 31/03/19 . Notice Periods
" Chair and Non-Executive :
Directors
. James Spittle ) 17 Sep 2018 30 Initial period of 3 years. Either palty can give l
. months’ notice.
Steven Glew. 01 Dec 2018 ’ 32 Initial period of 3 years‘ Either party can give 1
. . . months’ notice.
Heather Benjamin 01 Dec 2018 32 Initial period of 3 years. Either party can give 1

months’ notice.

Heather Tierney-Moore - Initial period of 3 years. Eithe'r party can give 1

01 Dec 2018 - 32

expense costs. Any potential conflict of interest
is registered and.managed in an applopnate way -
(see Directors’ conflict section).

OBE . . - months’ notice.
Executive DirectorS . :
The CEO.is an employee of the Cabinet Office
. A . and is seconded t6 SCCL until 31 March 2020.
Jin Sahota 25 Jul '20'17 12 The company recharges for all employment and

Shareholder and ‘
Stakeholder Directors

The Shareholder Director is a senior civil servant
at the Department of Health and Social Care and
) A . . receives no remuneration from the company.
Melinda Johnson - 04 Jan 2018 n/a There were also no recharges. Any potential
' o : . conflict of interest is registered and managed in
an appropriate way (see Directors’ conflict
section).

The Company Director is an employee of NHS
Improvement ("NHSI") and receives no
remuneration from the company. There were also
no recharges. Any potential conflict of interest is
registered and managed in an appropriate way
(see Directors’ conflict section). )

- The Company Director is an employee of NHSI

- and receives no remuneration from the company.
There were also no recharges. Any potential
conflict of interest is registered and managed in
an appropriate way (see Directors’ conflict
section). ’

Jeremy Marlow " 27Feb 2018 " n/a

‘Michael Hyne 14Jun2018  na
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Supply Chain Coordmatlon Limited

Remuneration Report (contmued)

For Directors in office as at 31 March 2019, the details of service contracts, unexpired term and notice periods
are shown in the previous table. Early termination, other .than for mis¢oniduct, would result in the individual
receiving compensation.-

There are no other service agreements, letters of appointment or material contracts, between the company and

any of the Directors. There are no arrangements or understandings between any Director and any other person

" pursuant to which any Director was selected to serve. There are no family relationships between the Directors.

: Remuneratmn of Board members
The following: table provides details of the remuneration and pension of Board members in post during the
reporting period.

- Salary Bonus Benefits Pension Total

, - in Kind Contribution Remune}ation
£000 . £000 £ £000 £000 -

(Bands of (Bands of ' : (Bands of

£5,000) £5,000) 05 TR ) £5,000)
Chair and Non-Executive Directors ‘ :
James Spittle-3) 25-30 nil nil . nil. ©25-30
Steven Glew (4) A 510 .. nil il nil 5-10
Heather Benjamin (4) '5-10 nil il nil 5-10
Heather Tierney-Moore OBE (4) 5-10 . il nil nil . 5-10
Timothy Nolan (5) ' . 10-15 il nil nil 10-15
Executive Directors
Jin Sahota (6) ) 195-200 10-15 nil - 20-25° 230-235
Michael Parr (7) © 105110 Conil il - 5-10 110-115
Melinda Johnson (8) . . ' f/a n/a na - nfa . n/a
Jeremy Marlow (9) - n/a n/a n/a - n/a ‘ n/a
.Michael Hyne (10) . n/a nfa - n/a .. nla na

Paul West (11) o n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a -

() Benef' ts are noted to the nearest £100.

2) Employer pension contributions relate to employer contributions lo the NHS Pension Plan and PCSPS. Conlnbutlons are shown in Note
7 Directors’ remuneration: :

(3) Appointed on 17 September 2018: wteote equivalent (WYE) range ¢45,000-55,000 - for comparative purposes only.

(4) Appointed on | December 2018: wteote equivalent-(WYE) range ¢20,000-30,000 - for comparative purposes only

(5) Resigned 26 November 2018: wteote equivalent (WYE) range ¢20,000-30,000 - for comparative purposes only-

(6) On secondment until 31 March 2020. Salary is recharged. ‘

(7) Resigned 30 August 2018 Salary includes a payment in lieu of notice amounting to £55,000 - WYE rarige ¢105,000-110,000 - for
comparative purposes only. .

(8) Appointed on 4 January 2018. No remuneration to dxsclose for the penod

(9) Appointed on 27 February 2018 and-resigned on 11 July 2019:No remuneration to disclose for the period.
-(10) Appointed on 14 June 2018 and resigned on 31 May 2019: No remuneration to disclose for the penod

(11) Resigned on 14 June 2018: No remuneration to disclose for the period. .

Salary includes gross salary, overtime and any allowances to the extent t\hat it is subject to UK taxation

excluding voluntary settlements. The monetary value of benefits in kind covers any payments or other benefi ts

provided by the company, which are treated by HM Revenue and Customs as a taxable emolument.
‘Total remuneration for the directors was £116,096.85. This excludes the salary of the Chief Executive Officer,

. which is charged to SCCL by the Cabinet Office, but theti is recharged to Productive Transformation Projects

("PTP") by SCCL and therefore does not impact the financial results of the company.
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Supply Chain Coordination Limited
~ Remuneration Report (continued)
‘Median earnings

Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relatlonshlp between the remuneration of the most highly .paid
individual in their organisation and the median earnings of the or; gamsatlon s workforce. The table below details

* - median earnings for the company.

: S o 201819
Highest earner’s total remuneration (£000) (1) - . . 210-215
Median total remuneration (£) : .o 49,242

Ratio : R . : . 4.32
(1) Sataries for senior management are disclosed in bands of £5,000 in accordance with EPN 430 Guidance

Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay and benefits in kind. It does not
" include voluntary settlements employer pension’ contrlbutlons ‘and the cash equivalent tl“ansfel -value of
pensions.

The medlancalculation does not include agency workers or other non-permanent workers.
Pension
NHS Pension Scheme

Pension benefits are provided through the NHS Pension Scheme ("NHSPS") for any employees who TUPE
transferred from NHS BSA to SCCL on | April 2018 and for employees with New Fair Deal protection who
TUPE transferred from DHL NHS Supply Chain to SCCL on either 1 October 2018 or 1 Decembel 2018 and
. who were not pthlblted from rejoining the NHSPS.

No current Board members have an interest in the NHS Pension Scheme Details of the benefits payable under
these provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs. uk/pensions.

The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, GP practices and other bodles,
allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be
run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to 1dentlfy theu share of the underlying scheme assets and

liabilities. . :

Theréfore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a deﬁned contribution scheme: the cost to-the NHS body of
participating in the scheme is taken as e€qual to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting
period. . .

The scheme is subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years. As a 1esult the deﬁned benefit obhgatlons .
recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those -that would be determined at the
_ reporting date by a formal actuaual valuation. Full detalls of this are included in Note 17 to the financial
statements.

Civil Service Pension Sch'eme '
Pension benefits are.provided through the Ciyil Service Pension for’ any employees who TUPE transferred from
DHL NHS Supply Chain to SCCL on e1the1 1 October 2018 orl December 2018.

The Chief Executive Officer has an interest in the Civil Semce Pension Scheme in that he is a2 member of the
scheme. Details of the benefits payable under these provisions can be found on the Civil Service Pensions
website at www.civilser vncepensmnscheme org.uk.

The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers Government Department employers and other
bodies, allowed under the direction of the Cabinet Office. The scheme is not deésigned to be run in a way that -
would enable compames to ldentlfy their share of the underlymg scheme assets and liabilities. K
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Supply Chain Coordination Limited
Remuneration Report (continued)

Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contxibutibn scheme: the cost to the company of
participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accomtmg
period.

The scheme is subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years. As a result, the defined benefit. obligations
recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that would be determined at the
reporting date by a founal actuarial valuation. Full details of this are included in Note 17 to the financial
statements.

Federated Pension Plan

Pension benefits are plov1ded through the Fedenated Pension Plan ("FPP") for any employees who TUPE .
transferred from DHL NHS Supply Chain to SCCL with New Fair Deal protection on either 1 October 2018 or 1 -
December 2018. The FPP is a broadly comparable pension scheme.provided to members who are unable to
1ejom the NHS Pension Scheme (e.g. due to being over 60 at the time of TUPE transfer or if in receipt of their
pension beneﬁts from the NHSPS). . .

No current Boald members have an interest in the Federated Pension Plan.

The benefits payable and rules of the scheme are broadly comparable to those provided by the NHSPS. Further
details can be obtained from PAN Group, the trustees of the Plan. The Scheme is a funded defined benefit
pension scheme used to enable NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, to provide pension benefits to
employees who would have rejoined the NHSPS but are unable to as they were cither over age 60 when their
employment commenced or were in receipt of theu pensnon benefits.

Whilst the scheme is fully sectionalized, the presence of at least one other “non-associated” employer in the

same section of the scheme means that it is not possible for individual companies in the same section to identify

their individual shares of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities.. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as
_if it were a defined contribution scheme. The cost to the company of participating in the scheme is taken as -
-equal to the contributions payable by the company to the scheme for the accounting period.

The scheme is subject to a full actuarial valuation every three years. As a result, the defined benefit obligations
recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that would be determined at the
reporting date by a formal actuarlal valuation. Full details of this -are included in Note 17 to the fmanmal
statements. - :
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Supply Chain Coordination Limited .

Remuneration Report (continued)

_NEST

People employed directly by SCCL on-or after-1 April 2018 or who transferred from DHL NHS Supply Chain
without New Fair Deal pension protection are not eligible to be members of the NHS Pension Scheme or Civil

- Service Pension Scheme and are automatically enrolled in the wmkplace pension scheme provided by NEST,

unless they decide-to opt out.

" NEST is a defined contribution'plan. A defined contribution planisa post—employnlent benefit plan under which

the company pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to

pay further amounts in relation to the period covered by these accounts.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the Income

Statement in the periods during which services are rendered by employees.

Under legislation governing auto enrolment, for the financial year 6 April 2018 to 5 April 2019, employees are
required to contribute a minimum of 3% p.a. of their base salary. Employees have the option to increase their
contributions up to a maximum of 6% p.a. SCCL matches double the contribution iate selected: by each
employee, up to a maximum of 12%. S

In April 2018, the company put in place a Life Assurance Plan to provide a lump sum benefit payable -on a
member's death at a multiple of four times basic salary. For employees who opt out of the pension arrangements,
the Life Assurance Plan will provide a lump sum benefit payable on an employee’s death at a multiple of one
tlmes basic salary. . .

No current Board members have an interest in the NEST Pension Scheme.
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Supply Chain Coordination Limited

Sustainable Development Strategy

‘During our first year of operation, we have continued with the corporate social responsibility approach that was

embedded within the organisation previously running the NHS Supply Chain. As SCCL, we will redefine those
objectives to meet the evolving expectations of our stakeholders, have clear metrics in place to monitor
progress, and connect our Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR") objectives to the company culture.

During 2018/19 we recruited a supplier resilience and sustainability manager to continue the existing
programme of work across our logistics network and buying teams. Our focus in this first year was to maintain
the inherited standards and compllance w1th regulatory 1equuements The areas of work already ongoing
include:

.

Reducing carbon emissions: our haulage vehicles meet the most stringent emissions standards for Europe;
Reducing waste: we collect and recycle packaging materials within our warehouse operations;

Safeguarding natural resources: we embed appropriate regulations and government pledges into our
procurement activities. For example, we created a programme to replace all ‘virgin white’ copier paper used
by the NHS with a recycled alternative saving oi energy in production, water usage and trees;

Behaving ethlcally and responsibly: including utilising the Labour Standards and Assurance Scheme (LSAS)
within our buying practises, and adhermg to the UK Modern Slavery Act 2015;

Contributing_to the development of local communities: supporting Small and Medium Enterprises (SME),
and promoting diversity as a strength within our business. Over the course of the year, we were delighted to
have exceeded the government target for SME participation in the business, reaching 35% compared to the
target of 33%. We have also encouraged our employees to select and support a charity - Macmillan was the
charity chosen and supported by the business for 2018/19.
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*Supply Chain Coofdination Limited -
‘Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Supply Chain Coordination Limited

I have audited the financial statements of Supply Chain Coordination Limited (‘the company’) for the year
ended 31 March 2019 which comprise the Income Statement, the Statement-of Financial Position, The
Statement of Cash Flows, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the related notes, including the significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable
law and International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union. I have also audited the
information in the Remunel ation Report that is described as havmo been audited.

In my opinion the fi nanclal statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the company s affairs as at 31 Malch 2019 and of the loss for thc year
then ended;

"+ have been properly prepared in accoxdance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by
European Union; and

"« have been prepared in accotrdance with the Companies Act 2006.

Basis of opinions

I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) (UK). My responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of my report. Those standards require me and my staff to comply with the Financial
Reporting Council’s Revised Ethical Standard 2016. I am independent of Supply Chain Coordination Limited in
.accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit and the financial statements in the UK.
My staff and I have fulfilled our-other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. I believe '
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. '

Conclusions 1elatmg to going concern

I am required to conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least
twelve months from the date of approval .of the financial statements. If I conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My -conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to
cease to continue as a going concern. I have nothing to report in these respects. :

Responsibilities of the Directors’ for the financial statements )
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, the Directors are responsible for: -

* the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. ~

+ such internal control as management determines is necessary' to enable the plepalatlon of fi inancial .

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or er101

. assessmg the company s ability to contmue as a going concern, disclosing, if applicable, matters relating to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the dlrectors either intend to hqmdate
the company or to cease operatlons or have no realistic altematlve but to do so.
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Supply Cha‘in Coordin‘ation Limited .

Independent Audltor s Report to the Membeérs of Supply Cham Coordmatmn lelted
(continued)

Auditor’s responsnbllltles for the audit of the ﬁnanclal statements
My responsibility is to audit and express. an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with appllcable
law and International Standards on Auditing ("ISAs") (UK). .

"An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to -
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by

fraud or ‘error. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expectedto influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK) I exerclse professxonal Jjudgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. I also: :

» identify and assess the risks of material mlsstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement. resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« obtain an understandmg of internal control relevant to the audit in order to-design audit procedures that are
appropnate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an oplmon on the effectiveness of the
company’s -internal control. :

.. _evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used' and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

+ evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including'the disclosures,
" and whether the financial statements’ represent the underlymo transactions and events in a2’ manner that
-achieves fair presentatlon

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I
identify during my audlt

Other information .

‘Directors’ are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises information mcluded in .

the annual report, but does not include the parts of the Remuneration Report described in that report as having

been audited, the financial statements and my auditor’s report-thereon. My opinion on the financial statements -

does not cover the other information and 1.do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In
connection with my audit of the financial statements,’ my responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my.
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work I have

performed, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, I am requued to report that -
- fact. T have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescrlbed by the Compames Act 2006
In my opinion:

+ the -parts-of the Remuneration Report to be audlted have been pxoperly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act.

-+ . in light of the knowledge and undefstanding of the company and its‘environment obtaincd in the course of
_ the audit, 1 have not identified any material misstatements in the Strateglc Report or the Directors’ Report;
and” - :

~ Page 32

)



* Supply Chain Coordination Limited

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Supply Chain Coordmatlon Limited
(contmued)

 .the information given -in the Strategic and Directors’ Report fdr the financial year for 'which the financial

-statements are prepared is consistent.with the financial statements and those xeports have been prepaled in
accordance with appllcable legal reqmremcnts

Matters on which I report by exception

I have nothing to report iri respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires me to report '

to you if, in my opinion:_

« adequate accounting records have not been kept, or retumns adequate for my audit_have not been received
from branches not visited by my staff; or

o . the financial statements and the part of the remuneration report to be audited are not in agneement w1th the
accountmo records and returns; or -

o certain disclosures of directors’ 1emunera,tion specified by law are not made; or . .

¢ I have not received all of the information and explanations I require for my audit.

QY Scmox Statutoxy Audxtoz) :
For a.nd on behalf of Comptroller & Audltor Gener: al Statutory Auditor

157- 197 BuckmOham Palace Road
Victoria

London
SWIW 9Sp

7§ ranuary 2020
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‘ Supply Chain Coordination Limited
Income.Statement for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

Yearended ~ Period ended -

31 March 31 March
2019 2018
‘ Note . £000 £000

" Revenue E ' ' . A 4 19,048 ‘-

" Administrative expenses . o 5 ) (19,048) -
Operating profit/(los§) i A ‘ - . b
Profit/(loss) before - : ' o -

_ Income tax expense . 9 - . (17D B -
Losé for the year/period ' o I ' (17) .=

The above results were derived from continuing operations.

The company has no other comprchensive income other than that included in the results above and therefore a
separate Statement of Comprehensive Income has not been presented.

~ The notes on pages 38 to 66 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Supply Chain Coordination Limited

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2019

Approvéd by the Board on 9 Jé.nuaxy 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

- Chief executive
Registration number: 10881715

The notes on pages 38 to 66 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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31 March 31 Maréh
- 2019 . 2018
Note £000 - £ 000
- Assets ' '
) Noni-current assets- . . . .
Property, plant and equipment - 10 8,017 -
* - Intangible assets ' ) 11 1,094 -
Total non-current assets - . C A . ' 9,.1 11 -
* - Current assets
Trade and other receivables ' : . 12 ‘ 2,135 -
Cash and cash équivalents . 13 158,361 - -
Total current assets ' ) o ‘ 160,496 ' -
Current liabilities - - . ‘ .
Trade and other payables o 14 o (6,438) -
Provisions ' ' ' . 16 (169) -
Total current liabilities ﬁ (6,607) - -
Non-current liabilities ~ - ' .
Loans and borrowings . ’ Is- - (142,000) -
Deferred tax liabilities 9 . (17) -
Total non-current liabilities ' © (142,017) -
Total liabilities i (148,624) -
Total nét assets , - " ' . - 20,983 -
Equity ' - . A
Share capital ) . : 18 21,000 -
Retained earnings , (17) -
Total equity~ - ' o : 20_,983' -



Supply Chain Coordination Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

Year ended . Period ended

31 March ~ 31 March
_ - 2019 2018
Note . £000 - £000
Cash flows from operating activities »
Loss for the year/period : ‘ S an -
Adjustments to cash flows from non-cash items : .
Depreciation and amortisation 5 656 -
‘Income tax expense : 9 . 17 . -
. 656 - -
Working capital adjustments _ o
Increase in trade and other receivables : - 12 , (2,135) -
Increase in trade and other payables 14 . 6,438 -
Increase in provisions ) ) ' 16 169 . .
Net cash flow from operatihg activities . S 5,128 ' -
Cash flows 'fro}n investing activities _
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment 10 ' (8,625) : -
Acquisition of intangible assets . A B G (1;142)- -
Net cash flows from investing activities - o (8,767) -
‘Cash flows from financing activities .
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares, net of issue costs - 18 21,000 —
Proceeds from draw down of borrowings 15 ' 142,000 . ’ -

' Net cash flows from financing activities - - ‘ . 163,000 -
Net increase in cash and cash equ!‘valents ' . . ' 158,361 - . -
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April ‘ : : - -
Cash and cash equivalents-at 31 March ‘ . 13 158,361 - -

The notes on pages 38 to 66 form.an integral pait of these financial statements.
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Supply Chain Coordination Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

‘Retained
Share capital ' carnings Total .
: . Note - . £000 £000 . £000
At 25 July 2017 and 1 April 2018 . - A - -
Loss for the year = . A ' - QD 17)
Total comprehensive income - a7 S an
New share-capital issued A 18 21,000 ‘ - 21,000
At31 March 2019 - o 21,000 A 20,983

The notes on pages 38 to 66 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Supply Chain Coordination Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

1 General information

The company is a private company hmlted by share capltal incor; porated in England and Wales and domiciled
in the United Kingdom.

The address of its registered office is:
Skipton House

80 London Road

London

SEl 6LH

United Kingdom |

_ The company was incorporated on 25 July 2017 as Friars 728 Limited. With effect from 15 November 2017, the
company changed its name to-Supply Chain Coordination Limited. The company did not start trading until 1
. April 2018: The principal activity of the company is the management of the NHS Supply Chain as an agent for
the NHS BSA.

-These coinpany financial statements are presented for the year ended 31 March 2019. Comparatives are
presented for the period from incorporation to 31 March 2018.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board on 9 January, 20'20_..

2 Accoun‘ting policies '

Statement of complmnce . .
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reportmc Standards and
its interpretations adopted by the EU ("adopted IFRSs").

Summary. of s1gmﬁcant accountmg policies and key accounting estimates :
The principal accounting policies applied. in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods présented, ‘unless otherwise stated.

Basxs of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with adopted IFRSs and under hlstorlcal cost
~ accounting .rules. Hlstorlcal cost is venerally based on the fair-value of consideration given in. exchange for
assets.,

In preparing the financial statements in conformity with IFRS, management is required to make judgements,
" estimates and assumptions about the carxying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
. other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on hlstoncal experience and othe1 factors that

are relevant. Actual results may differ from those estimates. :

The functional and presentational currency is Sterling. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand,
unless otherwise mdlcated :
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Supply Chain Coordination Limited

' Notes to the Financial Statements for.the Year Ended 31 March 2019 _(continued) ‘

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Going concern : .
<" The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basns as set out in the Dnectors Report on
‘pages 12 to 15.

Appllcatlon of new and 1evrsed lFRSs
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the company had not applied the following new and
revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

. IFRS 16 Leases ' ' :

General impact of IFRS 1 6 Leases

TFRS 16 provides a complehensrve model for the 1dent|f cation of lease arrangements and their treatment in the
financial statements for both lessors and lessees. IFRS 16 will supersede the current lease guidance including
IAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019. The date of initial application of IFRS 16 for the company will be 1 April 2019.

As at'31 March 2019, the company had’ operatlng leases in respect ofa bu1ldmo and some cars, and did not act
asa lessor . ’

Impact of the new definition of a lease

The company will make use of the practical expedient available on transition to IFRS 16 not to reassess whether .
a contract is or contains a lease. Accordingly, the definition of a lease in accordance with IAS 17 and IFRIC 4
will continue to apply to those leases entéred into or modified before'1 April 2019. The company will apply the
definition of a lease and related guidance set out-in IFRS 16 to all lease contracts entered into or modified on or
after 1 April 2019 (whether it is a lessor or a lessee in the lease contract).

The change in definition of a lease mainly relates to the concept of control. IFRS 16 drstmgulshes between
. leases and service contracts on the basis of whether the use of an 1dent1ﬁed asset is controlled by the customer.
Control is considered ta exist if the customer has:

"« The right to obtain substantrally all of the econoinic benefits from the use of an 1dent|ﬁed asset; and
+ The rlght to direct the use of that asset.

For the period ended 31 March 2019, the company only had operating leases in respect of a building -and some
cars. There are not expected to be further assets recognised due to the new definition of a lease. From 1 April
2019, the trading of the NHS Supply Chain was transferred to the company. The 1mpact of IFRS 16 on this
business has yet to be assessed. .

‘ Impact on Lessee Accountmg Operating Leases

. IFRS 16 will change how the company accounts for leases prevrously classifi ed as operating leases under IAS
17, which were off-balance sheet. .

On initial applrcatlon of IFRS 16, for all leases (except as noted below), the company will:

"« Recognise rlght-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position, initially measured at
the present value of the future lease payments;

-» 'Recognise depr ecnatlon of rlght-of-use assets and interest on lease liabilities in the Income Statement

+ Separate -the total amount of cash paid into a principal portion (presented within operating act1v1t1es) and
interest (presented within fmancma activities), in the Statement of Cash Flows.
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‘Supply Chain Coordination Limited

Notes to the Financial Statéments for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Lease incentives, such as a rent fre¢ period, will be recognised as part of the measurement of the right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities whereas under IAS 17 they-resulted in the recognition of a lease liability incentive,
amottised as a reduction of rental expenses on a straight line basis.

Under IFRS 16, right-of-use asscts will be tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment- of
Assets. This will replace the previous requirement to recognise a provision for onerous lease contracts.

. For short-term leases (those with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets (such as
personal computers and office furniture), the company- -will .opt to recognise a lease expense on a straight-line
basis as permitted by IFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2019, the company has non-cancellable oper: atmg lease commitments of £4.1m, which relates.to
the lease of a building in Nottingharhand some cars: The company will therefore recognise right-of-use assets
of £3.7m and a corresponding lease liability of £3.7m in respect of these leases. The impact on profit or loss is
to decrease operating expenses by £3.9m and to increase depreciation by £3.7m and increase interest expense by
£0.2m.

Under IAS 17, all lease payments on operating leases are plesented as part of cash flows from operating
activities. The impact of the changes under IFRS 16 would be to increase the cash generated by .operating
actlvmes by £3.5 million and to decrease net cash used in financing activities by the same amount.

Revenue recognition :

Revenue compuscs the fair value of the con51de1at10n received or receivable for the sale of goods and provision
of services in the ondmary course of the company's activities. Revenue is shown net of value added tax, returns,
rebates and discounts.

The principles in IFRS 15 are applied to revenue recognition criteria using the following 5 step model:

1. Identify the contracts with the customer

2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract

3. Determine the transaction price .

4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
5. Recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies its performance obligations

Recognition

The company earns revenue from managing the sale of medicines and other items on behalf of other parties.
This revenue is recognised in the accounting period when control of the product has been transferred, at an
" amount that reflects the consideration to whicly the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for fulfilling its
performance obligations to customers. The company also earns revenue from the provision of services relating
to acting as an agent in the provision of goods. This. revenue is recognised in the accounting period when: the
services are rendered at an amount that reflects the consideration to Wthh the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for fulfilling its pe1 formance obllgations to customers.
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Supply Chain Coordination Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements Afor the Year Ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Prmczpal versus Agent

There are arrangements where It needs to be determmed whether the NHS Supply Chain'acts as a prmClpal oran

agent, as more than one party is invelved in providing the goods and services to the customer. A company acts

as a principal if it controls a promised good or services before transferring that good or service to the customer.

A company is an agent if its role is to arrange for another ‘entity to provide the goods or services. Factors

considered in making this assessment.are most notably the discretion the company has in establishing the price

for the specified good or service, whether the company has inventory risk and whethel the company is pumar ily
' responsrble for- fulfllmg the promise to deliver the service or: good

Where the company is actmg as a principal, revenue is recorded on a gross basis. Where the company is acting
as an agent, revenue is recorded at a net amount reflecting the margin earned. ‘

v

" Sale of goods and ser vices

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in a contract to a
‘customer, and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The company recognises revenue when it .
transfers control of a product or service to a customer. Where income is received for a specific activity whrch is
to be delivered in the followmg financial year, that income is deferred.

Fee arrangements

Below are details of fee arrangements and how these are measured and recognised, for revenue from the sale of
products and the provision of services:

+  For fixed price point of sale revenue is recogmsed when control is transferred and performance- obligations
~are met on delivery of products to customers.

. For variable or contingent fee arrangements from services revenue. revenue is recognised when control is
passed, either at a point in time or over a period of time, when performance obligations have been satisfied.

Performance obligations

. The main performance obligations to customers consist of delivery of products. Due to the retail nature of the
business, judgements made in evaluating when control has passed are limited.

The main performance obhgatlons in contlacts consist of delivery of services. For all contracts the stage of A
completion and delivery of ‘performance obligations are measured at the balance sheet ‘date by reviewing the
stage of completlon with reference to the contract .

Contract assets and receivables

Where goods or services are transferred to the customer before the customer pays consideration, or before
payment is due, contract assets are recognised. Contract assets are included in the Qtatement of Financial
Position and represent the right to consndctatlon for pnoducts delivered.

" Contract liabilities

" Contract liabilities and customer deposrts are recogmsed in the Statement of Fmanclal Position when the
company has received consideration but stlll has an obligation to deliver ploducts and meet performance
obhgatrons for that con31de1 ation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 (contmued)

2" Accounting polieies (continued)

Segmental reporting

: For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Directors are of the opinion that the company is engaged in a single -

segment of business as it sets up to take on the operational management of the NHS Supply Chain from 1 April
12019,

- Operating expenses
Operating expenses are recogmsed when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have been received. They

are measured at the fair value of the consideration payable.

Busmess Combinations

IFRS 3 Business Combinations is the mtematlonal accountmg standard govermng business combmanon .

transactions. Where entities are deemed to operate under common control, business reconfigurations are outside
of the scope of IFRS 3. Given such a transaction, IFRS 3 requires an entity to develop an accounting policy for
common control transactions and to apply it consistently. The HM Treasury’s Financial Reporting Manual
2018/19 (FReM) requires the appllcatxon of ‘absorption accounting’. Absorption accountmg requues that
entities account for their transactions in the period in which those transactions took place.

The assets and llabllltles transferred are rccogmsed in the accounts as at the date of transfer and prior year
comparaiives are not restated. The assets and liabilities are not adjusted to.fair value prior to recognition. The
net gain or net loss corresponding to the .net assets and liabilities transferred is recognised in the Income
Statement and is disclosed separately from opelatmg costs.

In absonptlon txansfer accounting for propeny, plant and equipment and intangible assets the cost and
accumulated depreciation and amortisation balances from the transferring entity’s accounts are preserved on
‘ recognition in the acquirer’s accounts. Where the transferring body recogmsed revaluation reserve balances
attributable to the assets, the receiving entity makes a transfer from retained earnings to its revaluation reserve.

Property, plant and equipment

Initial recognition '

Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if:

' it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;

+ it is probable that future economic.benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplled to, the
company;

« itis expected to be used for more than twelve months;
+ - the cost of the item ‘can be measured reliably; and
« either:

+ the item cost at least £5,000; or -

. tmllectively, a number of items have a total cost.of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more °

than £250, where the assets are functionally interdependent, they have broadly similar purchase dates, are
anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and are under single managerial control; or

. the items form part of the initial set-up costs of a building, urespectlve of their individual or collective
cost.
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2 Accountmo pohcles (contmued)

. Where an asset includes a number of components with stgmﬁcantly different asset lives, the components are
treated as separate assets and depreciated over their mdmdual useful economic lives.

All property, plant and equipment is measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly attributable to

acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of

operating in the manner intended by management. .

Land and buildings are stated at cost in the Statement of Financial Position, less any subsequent depreciation.

and impairment losses. Revaluations-are per formed with sufficient regularity to ensure that calrylng amounts are
" not materially misstated.

IT equtpment transport €quipnient, furmtule and ﬁttmgs and plant and machinery that are held for operational
use are valued at depxecnated historical cost, which the directors consider approximates to the fan value.

Subsequent expen dztu re

Where subsequent expendltune enhances an asset beyond its original specification; the directly attnbutable cost
is capitalised. Where subsequent expenditure restores the asset to its original specification, the expenditure is
capitalised and any exxstmg carrying value of the item replaced is charged to operating expenses.

: Depr reciation

-Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less-their
residual values over their useful lives as follows:

Asset class - . Depreciation period
Buildings - o 10 - 50 years
Leasehold improvements . . 10years

" IT equipment - : 3 -5 years

- Furniture and fittings ‘ >t . 5-10years
Impairmehl ' '

At each Statement of Financial Position date, the company reviews the carrying amount of its tangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those’ assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is-estimated to determine whether there has been a loss
"and, if so, its amount. The asset is written down to its recoverable amount with the loss charged to the -
revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset, and thereafter the loss s
charged directly to the Income Statement. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to thé revised estimate of the recoverable amount but capped at the amount that would
have been determined had there been no initial impairment loss. The reversal of the impairment loss is credited
to the Income Statement to the extent of the decrease previously charged tl1e1e and thereafter to the revaluation
reserve. . :

Disposals )
" An item of property, plant or equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an

asset is determined as the difference between the sales procceds and the carrying amount of the asset. and is
recognised in the Income Statement. . .
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2 Accounting policies (continued)

Intanglble assets :
Intangible non-current assets are non- monetaxy assets without physrcal substance that are capable of sale

. -_separately from the rest of the company s business or arise from contlactual or other legal rights. They are

- recognised only:

+ " when it is probable that future economlc benefits wrll flow to, or service potential be provrded to, the
company; .

+ where the cost of the asset can be measuled rehably, and
-+ where the cost is at least £5,000.

Intangible non-current assets acquned separ: ately are measured at cost. Software that is integral to the operatlon
of hardware is capitalised as part of the relevant item of property, plant and equipment. Software that is not
" integral to the operatron of hardware is capitalised as an intangible asset.

Following initial recogmhon intangible assets are carried at amortlsed historic cost which the duectors
consider approxrmates to the fair value . . :

) A mortisation

Amortisation is provrded on mtangrble assets so as to write off the cost, less any estlmated resrdual value, over
their expected useful economic life on a straight-line basis as follows:

Asset class o ] , o Amortisation period
Computfer software: purchased _ ' 3-5 years :

Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transactron costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or. deducted-from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, 'as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acqursmon of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in proﬁt or loss. :

Financial assels

Financial assets are recogmsed on the Statement of Financial Position when the company becomes paity to the

“financial instrument contract, other than in the case of trade receivables, when the financial asset is recognised
when the goods or services have been delivered. Financial assets are derecogmsed when the contractual rights
have expired, or the asset has been transferred.

- Financial assets are classified under IFRS 9 as amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) depending on the company’s business model and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the instruments. As the company’s financial assets comprise cash and
cash equivalents -and trade receivables, they are classified as amortised cost assets.

Cash and cash equzvalenls

Cash comprises cash in"hand and deposits with any ﬁnancral institution repayable without penalty on notice of
‘note more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in thiree months or less from the date of
acquisition and are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value., -

The directors consider that cash and cash equivalents have a low credit risk as they are held exclusively within,
" the Governmeni Banking Service. As such, no expccted credit loss has been recognised in the financial
statements . '
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2 Accounting policies (continued)

Tr ade and other recetvables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services pe1 formed in the ordinary course
of business. The company’s trade receivables are primarily with NHS England and the NHS Business Services
Authority and are short-term in nature. The directors consider these entities as low risk due to bemg government
funded, and so an expected credit loss has not been recognised in the accounts.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position when the company becomes party to
the contractual provisions of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods or
services have been received. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability has been dlSChal ged; that is,
the liability has been paid or has expired. .

After mmal recognition, f nancial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective intérest method.
-The effective interest rate is the ate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the life of the
asset to the net carrying amount of the financial liability.- Interest is recognised using the effective 1nte1est
method. .

Trade payables

“Trade payables are obligations to pay for gaods or ser;/ices that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Trade payables are recognised initially at the tlansactlon price and subsequently. -
measu:ed at amomsed cost using the effective interest method. -

Borrowings

All borrowings are initially rccoxded at the amount of proceeds recelved net of transaction costs. Borrowmgs
are subsequently carried at amortised cost, with the difference between the proceeds, net of transaction costs,
and the amount ‘due on redemption being recognised as a charge to the income statement over the period of the
relevant borrowing.

Interest expense is recognised on the. basis of the effective interest method and is included in finance costs. '

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the company has an uncondmonal nght to defer settlement
" of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
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2 Accounting policies (continued)

Inventories

- Inventories are valued at weighted average cost. Cost comprises direct mateuals and where applicable, direct
labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

At each reporting date, inventories are assessed for impainment’ If impaired, the carrying amount is reduced to
its selling price less costs to complete and sell, and the impairment oss is recogmsed immediately in the Income
: Statement

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there exists.a present legal or constructive obhgatlon as a result of a past event,

it is probable that the company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a piovision is the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties.

Where a.provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the obligation, the carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows using appropriate discount rates dependent on the expected timing of cash
flows.

Finance income and costs
Finance costs mainly relate to interest expense on bonowmgs Interest expense. is recognised in the Income
Statement as it accrues. :

The company has no finance income.

Tax . : .
Tax in the Income Statement comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the Income Statement
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case. it is recognised in equity.

Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable proﬁt or loss for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantlvely enacted at the statement of financial position date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years. -

Deferr ed tax

Deferred tax is provrded on temporary differences between the calrymg amounts of assets and hablhtles for
financial reporting pur; poses and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax plovnded is
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and hablhtles, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enactcd at the statement of ﬁnanc1al position date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be -
available against which the temporaxy difference can be utlhsed
Value Added Tax (VAI)

Amounts are stated net of VAT where output tax is charged or where input tax is recoverable. Where input tax is
not recoverable, VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase
cost of non-current assets
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2 Accounting policies (continued)

Leases :

Leases in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lesson are classified as
“operating leases. Payments made unde1 opelatmg leases are charged to ploﬁt or loss on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease

lmpan ment of non-financial assets )

Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment losses whenever events or changes in circumstances mdncate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recovexable amount, whlch is the highier of an asset's fair value less
costs to sell, and value in use.

Share capital .

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Equity mstmments are measured at the fair value of the cash or other
resources received or receivable, net of the direct costs of i 1ssumg the equity instruments. If payment is deferred
and the time value of money is material, the initial measurement is on a present value basis.

-Superannuatlon Schemes

Defined benefit schemes

Employees who have been TUPE transferred to the company from NHS Business Services Authority and DHL

NHS Supply Chain with New Fair Deal Protection are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pension Scheme,

Civil Service Pension Scheme or Federated Pension Plan-(a broadly comparable pension scheme for members

who have New Fair Deal Protection and would have normally rejoined the NHSPS but are, unable to as they are
_ prohibited from rejoining by the Scheme Rules).

The NHS Pension Scheme is an unfunded, defined bénefit pension scheme that covers NHS employers, general
practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The-
scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would-enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying
scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme.
The cost to the company of participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable by the
company to the scheme for the accounting period. For early retirements, other than those due to ill health, the
additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full. amount of the liability for the additional
costs is charged to expenditure at the time the company commits itself to the retuement regaldless of the
method of payment. : . .

The Civil Service Pension Scheme is an unfunded, deﬁned benefit pension scheme that covers Government
" department employers and other bodxes allowed under admission agreéments issued by the Cabinet Office. The
scheme is not designed to be run in'a way that would enable Government departments to identify their share of
the underlymg scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is-accounted for as if it were a defined
contribution scheme. The cost to the company- of participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the
contributions payable by the company to the scheme for the accounting period. For early retirements, other than
those due to ill health, the additional pension liabilities are not funded-by the scheme. The full amount of the
liability for the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the company commits ltself to the
retirement, regaldless of the method of payment
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2 Accountmg policies (contmued)

The Federated Pension Plan is a fully sectionalized multi- employe1 funded pensnon scheme "that typically
provides benefits that are certified as Broadly Comparable to various public service pension schemes. The "
company has a section to which “it is regarded as the principal employer” and it has allowed access to other
employers (e.g. Unipart) as “participating employers” for benefits that are Broadly Comparable to the pension
~ benefits the employees would have received if they had been allowed to rejoin the NHSPS. Whilst the scheme is

fully sectionalized, the pxesence of at least one other “non-associated” emplayer in the same section of the
scheme means that it is not possible for individual companies in the same section to identify their individual
shares of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a
defined contribution scheme. The cost to the company of participating in the scheme is.taken as equal to the
contributions payable by.the company to the scheme for the accounting period. For early retirements, other than
- those due to ill health, the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the: scheme. The full amount of the
liability for the additional costs is charged to. expenditure at.the time the company commits itself to the
retirement, regardless of the method of payment.

Def ined contrzbutton plan

People directly employcd by SCCL on or after 1 April 2018 or who transferred from DHL NHS Supply Chain
without New Fair Deal pension ‘protection are automatlcally enrolled into the NEST pension scheme. This is a
defined contribution plan. A defined contribution plan‘is a post-employment benefit plan under which the
company pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay
further amounts in relation to the period covered by these accounts.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income in the periods during which services are rendered by employees.

3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with. JFRS requires management to make judgements,

estimates and assumptions that affect items reported in the financial statements, along with the disclosure of

contingent assets and liabilities as at the reporting date.

- Estimates and associated assumptions are based on past experience, current facts and circumstances and to
some extent, future ‘events and actions. Actual results may differ from these estimates. .

Estimates and-underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognise in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the peuod of
revision and future periods, if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical estimates and assumptions are made in particular, but not exclusively, with regard to the following:
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3 - Critical accodniing judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Gomg concern

The company's business actlvmes together with the factors likely to affect its future devclopment and
performance are set out in the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer's Report and the Strategic Report. The
financial position of the company, its cash flows, liquidity position and borrowing facilities are described in the
financial statements. ' '

The company is whéll_y owned by the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care, who has proVided a
Revolving Credit Facility to the company, which is not repayable until 30 September 2020. In addition, the
company will receive funding from the Department of Health for the foreseeable future.

The Directors believe that the company is well placed to manage its business risks successfully. Having
reviewed the company's current financial position, cash flow projections and loan facilities, the Directors have a -
reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. For this réason, the Directors contmue to adopt the gomg concern basis of accounting in .
preparing the financial statements. . .

Provisions

Judgement and estimation techmques are employed in ‘the calculation of the best estimate of the amount
required to settle obligations, including determining how. likely it is that expenditure will be required by the
company. . )
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4 Revenue

The analysis of the company's revenue from continuing operations is as follows: .

Rendering of services
Other revenue |

Period ended

Year ended
31 March 31 March
2019 T 2018
£000 £000
" 17,556 -
1,492, -
19,048 -

During the year, the company provrded services to NHS BSA around the management of the NHS Supply
Chain. In addition, the. company managed the stock levels of certain medxcmes and supplres on behalf of Public
"Health England, charging a management fee for this service.

Other revenue relates to amounts in respect of expendlture prrmauly wages, salaries and expenses, whlch are

recharged to related parties.

5 Administrative expenses

Staff costs

Depreciation expense
Amortisation expense

Opeérating lease expense - property
Operating lease expense - other

- Other
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608
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183
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

6 Staff costs

The aggregate payroll costs (including directors' remuneration) were as follows:

! : ‘ 31 March
: : 2019
£ 000

Wages and salaries - ' . S 11,890
- Social security costs : 139
Pension costs ' - . 495

Year ended '

Period ended

*. 31 March
2018
£ 000

Recharges . : 1,492
: ‘ ' 14,616

* Certain staff costs have been recharged to related parties as they are deemed to relate to costs which are not
directly attributable to the company and the budgets are held elsewhere for this work. The salary of the CEO is-

~ -also recharged. The revenue associated with these recharges is disclosed in Note 4 Revenue.

There have been further staff costs incurred which do notrelate to the company at all and have been recharged.
As these costs are not directly attributable to the company, they are not shown in the revenue or costs in the

financial statements and are not included i in the disclosure above.

The average number of persons employed by the company (mcludmo drrectms) during the year/perlod was as

follows:

Year ended
- 31 March
2019

No.

1
!

Permanent staff L . ' 141 -

Period ended -
31 March

- 2018

No.

‘Agency and temporary staff - ) ’ o 39
| | B 180
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7 Directors' remuneration

The directors' remuneration for the year/period was as follows: o

Yeadr ended Period ended
31 March = 31 March -

2019 " 2018
£000 £000

Remuneration ' ' ‘ ' _ A 117 : -
Contributions paid to pension schemes . 7 . -
Payment in lieu of notice : : .- 55 ' -

179 . - -

Directors' remuneration excludes remuneration for the Chief Executive Officer. The CEO is remunerated by the
Cabinet Office. SCCL are recharged for his time and expenses, which are reimbursed by DHSC. -

Disclosures relating to Directors' Remuneration are included in the Remuneration Report on pages 24 to 29.

8 Auditors' remuneration -
Year ended Period ended

31 March 31 March’,
2019 2018
) £000 - £000
Audit of,the financial statements ' ‘ . ) - 65 .-

9 Income tax
. Tax charged/(credited) in the income-statement: ' .
' " Yearended  .Period ended

31 March " 31 March
2019 2018
£000 - ~£000
Defen ed taxation )
' Ausmg from origination and reversal of temponary dlffel ences - 17 . -

The tax on profit before tax for the year is.the same as the standard rate of cor poratlon tax in the UK (2018 - the’
same as the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK) of 19% (2018 - 19%) :

The dlfferences are reconctled in the fol[owmg table:
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9  Income tax (continued)

Profit/(loss) before tax

Corporation tax at standard rate

Increase (decrease) from effect of different UK tax rates on some :

earnings . .
Increase (decrease) from effect of expenses not deductible in
determining taxable profit (tax loss) ’

Total tax charge

Deferred tax ‘ S
Deferred tax assets and liabilities

2019

.Fixed Assets
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2019 . 2018
£000 £000

@ -
19 -
17 -
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9  Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax movement during the year:

o At
At 1 April Recognised in 31 March
2018 income 2019
. : £000 £000 - £000
- Fixed Assets o - - 17 17
Defetred tax movement during the prior year: -
- : : At
At 1 April 31 March
2018 2019
o . £000 £ 000
Fixed Assets . S - -
10 Property, plant and equipmént _
. ' ' Furniture, Otl_lef
Leasehold fittings and  property, plant
Improvements - equipment  and equipment . Total
£000. - £000 £000 £000
Cost or valuation ' ' '
At 25 July 2017 and 1 April 2018 : - : - -
Additions " : 1,300 400 6,925 . 8,625
At 31 March 2019 - . T 1,300 3 400 . ' 6,925 - 8,625
Depreciation’ ‘ , _ ' i
At 25 July 2017 and 1 April 2018 ’ - . - s - A -
Charge for the year : 32 10 _ 566 608 -
At 31 March 2019 : i 32 10 566 608
Carrying amount ‘
At 31 March 2019 . 1,268 A 390 6,359 8,017

At31 March 2018 S - : , - ;
There are no‘indicators of impairment.

Depreciat{on of property, 'plant and equipment is included within Administrative expenses in the Income
" Statement. : - c
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11 Intangible assets

~ Cost or valuaAtion
At 25 July 2017 and 1 April 2018
Additiops : :

At 31 March 2019

. Amortisation . L
At 25 July 2017 and 1 April 2018 -

Amortisation charge
At 3] March 2019 °
Carrying amount
At 3] Man'ch. 2019
At31 March 2018

There are no indicators of impairment.

’

Software .
Licenses -Total
£000 £000
" 1,142 1,142
1,142 1,142
48 48 .
48 48
1,094

1,094

Amortisation of intangible assets is included within Administrative expenses in the Income Statement.

12 Trade and other receivables

. Trade receivables
.A Accrued income
- Prepayments’
Other receivables

‘There are no trade and other receivables due after one year (2018:
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31 March
2019
- £000

72

1,666
67
330

31 March
2018
£000
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13 Cash and cash equivalents

- 31 March 31 March

2019 2018

. o - £ 000 £ 000

. Cash at bank . ’ ) S 158,361 S
14 Trade and other payables

31 March 31 March

2019 2018

. : £000 £ 000

Trade payables B : 156 -

Accrued expenses : ‘ 6,219 -

Outstanding defined ‘contribution pension costs o y . 42 -

Other payables , ‘ A . 21 -

L ' ' ‘ 6,438 -

The company's éxposure to market and liquidity risks, ihcluding maturity analysis, related to trade and.other

payables is disclosed in Note 20 Financial risk review.
B v 7

1S Loans and bofrowings

31 March

2019

‘ £000
Non-current loans and borrowings ' _ .

Other borrowings ‘ ' 142,000

31 March
2018
£000

In March 2019, the company was provided a Revolving Credit Facility of £250m by the Secretary of State for
Health and Social Care. As at 31 March 2019, the company had drawn down £142m. The final repayment date

of the facility is on 30 September 2020. Until that date, no part of the loan is repayable unless the company has

an operational cash balance of over £120m.

The rate of interest applicable to this flexible loan facility is the interest rate determined. by the reference to the
National Loan Fund rate for loans up to one year prevailing on the date of the first utilisation of this Facility.

. On 13 September 2019, the compariy repaid £40m, leaving a drawn balance of £l‘02m (see Note 23b).
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16 Provisions

Redundancy -
provision Total
. £000 £000
© At ] April 2018 ; . N -
Additional provisions : ‘ o . , 169 169
At 31 March 2019 _ _ ' « 169 169
Current liabilities ‘ o . 169 169

The company has reviewed its organisation structure in order to improve the efficiency of its business. The
provision represents the obhgatlon to pay emiployee exit costs. The liability is expected to be settled within one
year. :

17 Pension and other schemes

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the four Pension Schenes, namely NHS Pens:on
.Scheme, Civil Service Pension Scheme, Federated Pension Plan and NEST.

NHS Pension Scheme . ' -

Details of the benefits payable and rules of the scheme can be found on the NHS' Pension website at

www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. The.Scheme is an unfunded defined benefit pension scheme that covers NHS

employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State in England and

Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their individual

share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it.were a

defined contribution scheme: the cost to the company of participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the -
contnbutlons payable by the company to that scheme for the accounting periad.

The government Financial Reporting Manual ("FReM") requires that “the perlod between formal valuations.
shall be four years, with approximate assessmefts in intervening years.! As a result, the defined beneﬁt
- obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that would be determined
- at the reporting-date by a formal actuarial valuation. An outline of these follows:

' Accounttng Valuation

A valuation of scheme liability is carrled out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government .
Actuary’s Department ("GAD")) as at the end of the reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for
the previous accounting period in conjunction with updated membership and financial data for the current .
reporting period and are accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The
valuation of scheme liability as at 31 March 2018 is based on valuation data as at 31 March 2016, updated to 31
. March 2018 with summary global mémber and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the -
"methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the discount rate prescrlbed by HM
Treasury have also been used. : '

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the scheme actualy' report, which forms part
of the annual NHS Pension Scheme (England and Wales) Pension Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on
the NHS Pensions website and are published annually. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.
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17 Pension and other schemes (continued)

Full actuarial (funding) haluation -

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under -the scheme
(taking into account recent demographic experlence) and to recommend contribution rates payable by
employees and employers.

The last full actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension scheme was completed for the year ending 31-
March 2016. The scheme regulations allow for the level of contribution rates to be changed by the Secretary of
State for Health and Social Care, with the consent of HM Treasury, and consideration of the advice of the
scheme actuary and appropriate employee -and employer representatives as deemed appropriate. Whilst the’
Employer contribution rate payable from April 2019 was determined by the valuation and the planned cost cap
benefit increases, the full implementation of the recommended cost cap benefit changes has been delayed
* pending review followmg the outcome of the McCloud case and any remedy.

The next full actuarial valuation of the NHS Pension Scheme is to.,be carried out as at 31, March 2020. This is
expected to set the employer contribution rate payable from Apnl 2023 and will -also consider the cost of the
scheme relative to the employer cost cap. There are provisions in the Public Service Pension Act 2013 to adjust
mémber benefits or contribution rates if the ‘cost of the scheme ,changes by more than 2% of pay. Subject to this
’employer cost cap’ assessment, any required revisions to member benefits or contribution rates will be
~ determined by the Secrctary ‘of State for Health and Social Care after consultation with the relevant
stakeholders. : :

Civil Service Pepsion Scizeme

Details of the benefits payable and 1ules of the scheme can be found on the Civil Service Pensions website at -
www.civilservicepensionscheme.org.uk. The Scheme is an unfunded defined benefit pension scheme: that covers
Government Department employers and other bodies, allowed under admission agreements issued by the
Cabinet Office. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable employets-to identify their
individual share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it
_were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the company of participating in the scheme i is taken as equal to -
the contributions payable by the company to that scheme for the accounting period. :

The Government FReM requires that’ “the period between formal valuations shall be foun years, “with
approximate assessments in intervening years." As a result, the defined benefit obligations recognised in the
financial statements do not differ materially ‘from those that would be determined at the reporting date by a
. formal actuarial valuation. An outlme of these follows:

Accountmg valuation -

A. valuatlon of scheme Ilablllty is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government
Actuary s Department) as- at the end of the reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the
previous accounting period in conjunction with updated membership and financial data for the current reporting
period and are accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The valuation of
scheme liability as at 31 March 2018 is based on valuation data as at 31 March 2016, updated to 31 March 2018
with summary global member and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology
prescribed in IAS 19 relevant FReM interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also.
been used. .

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the scheme actumy report, which forms part
of the annual Civil Service Pension Scheme Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the Civil Service
Pensions website and are published annually. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.
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17 Pension and other schemes (continued)

'Full actuarial (funding) valuation

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of habllxty in respect of the benefits due under the scheme

B (taking into account recent demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rates payable by

employees and employers.The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the.
benefits due under -the scheme (taking into account recent demographic experience), and to recommend
contribution rates payable by employees and employens :

The last full actuarial valuation undertaken for the Civil Serwce Pension schemé was completed for the year
ending 31'March 2016. The scheme regulations allow for the level of contribution rates to be changed by the
Cabinet Office, with the consent of HM Treasury, and consideration of the advice of the scheme actuary and
approprlate employee and employer representatives as deemed appropriate. Whilst the Employer contribution
rate payable from Apiil 2019 was determined by the valuation and the planned cost cap benefit increases, the
full implementation of the recommended cost cap benefit changes has been delayed pending review following
the outcome of the McCloud case and any remedy.

"The next full actuarial valuation of the Civil Service Pension Scheme is to be.carried out as at 31 March 2020

This is expected to set the employer contribution rate payable from Aprll 2023 and will also consider the cost of
the schemé relative to the employer cost cap. There are provisions in the Public Service Pension Act 2013 to
adjust member benefits or contribution rates if the cost.of the scheme changes by inore than 2% of pay. Subject
to this ’employer cost cap’ assessinent, any required revisions to member benefits or contribution rates will be
determined by the Cabmet Office after consultation w:th the lelevant stakeholdels I ’

F ederated Pens:on Plan

. The Federated Pension Plan ("FPP") is'a sectlonallzed multl employer puvate sector pension scheme run by
" PAN Trustees. The schemie holds a Passport from GAD confirming that its “NHSPS 1995 pension scheme
benefits” structure provides benefits which are Broadly Comparable to the benefits of the 1995. section of the
NHSPS. It is also expected to shortly hold a Passport from GAD confirming that its “NHSPS 2015 pension
scheme benefits” structure provides benefits which are Broadly Comparable to the benefits of the 2015 section
of the NHSPS. Further details can be obtained from PAN Group, the trustees of the Plan. The Scheme is a -
funded defined benefit pension scheme that is being used to enable SCCL and its contractors to provide pension
benefits to employees who would have rejoined the NHSPS but were unable to as they are prohibited from
1eJommg by the NHSPS Rules, for example, if they were over-age 60 when their employment commenced or
were in receipt of their pension benefits. Pension benefits are provided at a level which is broadly comparable to
the section ‘of the NHSPS that they would otherwise have been in. Whilst the scheme is fully sectionalized, the
“presence of at least one other “non-associated” employer in the same section’of the scheme means that it is not
possible for individual companies in the same section to identify their individual shares of the. underlying -
scheme assets and liabilities. Therefare, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme.
. The cost to the company of participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contnbutlons payable by the
* company to the scheme for the accountmg period. ’

« - \

" . NEST -

All SCCL employees directly employed by SCCL on or after | Aprll 2018 or who transferred from DHL NHS
Supply Chain without New Fair Deal pension protection are not eligible to be members of the NHSPS, CSPS or
FPP and are auto-enrolled into'the NEST pension 'scheme. This i isa defined contubutlon plan

18 - Share capital

Allotteo, called up and fully paid shares
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18 Share capital (continued)

31 March ' 31 March
2019 . : 2018
No. . £ - No. £

Ordinary shares of £1 each . 21,000,001 " 21,000,001 I L

" The Secretary of State for Health and Social Care subscribed for 13,000,000 ordinary £1 shares on 3 April 2018,
and a further 8,000,000 ordinary £1 shares on 28 March 2019. These shares were issued at par-for cash
con;ideratidn. ’ ’ ' .

19 Ohera‘ting lease commitments

The total future value of minimum lease payments is as follows:

31 March' 31 March
2019 ' 2018
£ 000 " £000

" Within one year’ . ‘ T 665 o -
In two to five years . ’ . : . 1,712 -

* In over five years . ’ 1,747 -
' 4,124. -

The amount of non-cancellable operating lease payments recognised as an expense during the year was
£372,000 (2018 - £Nil). : . : ’ .
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20 Financial risk review

This note presents information about the company’s exposure to financial risks.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss in the value of financial assets due to counterparties failing to meet all or part of
their obligations. ) . : .

In the normal course of business, exposure to credit risk arises from cash and investments with banks, and trade
and other receivables. For each of these, the maximum credit éxposure is best represented by the carrying
amount in the Statement of Financial Position. The company’s cash assets are all held within the Government
Banking Service. As the company- does not hold investments other than necessary cash, the company is not

.. exposed to significant credit risk in this regard.

The company’s trade receivables are primarily with NHS England and the NHS Business Services Authority
and are short-term in nature. The directors consider these entities as low risk due to being government funded

. and so an expected credit loss has not been recognised in the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

‘ Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in méeting obligations associated with

financial liabilities as they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk managemént includes maintaining sufficient cash and
the availability of funding. ‘ ’

The company mostly maﬁages liquidity risk by ciontinuously monitoring forecast cash-flow requirements and
management of the Revolving Credit Facility (see Note 15 Loans and borrowings).
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20 Financial risk réview (continued)

. Maturity analysis for financial assets and financial liabilities

“The following tables set out the remaining contractual maturities of the corﬁpany"s financial assets and financial liabilities by typé. ’

“Carrying Lessthanl " 3months-1

2019 o . : . . - amount month . 1-3 months year’ 1-5 years
Non-derivative assets £ 000 . £000 . £000. £000 o £000

" Other cuirrent financial assets | o 2,135 2,063 - 64 ) 8 -
Cash and short-term deposits ) ] _ - 158,361 - - - 158,361

" The company held no financial assets as at 31 March 2018. ) ’ )
R ) . ) : - Carrying Less than 1

2019 . . ’ ) ’ amount month  1-Syears

- Non-derivative liabilities ’ : : . . - £000 £000 £000
Non-current financial liabilities . ' 142,000 ; - 142,000

. Current financial liabilities . . N . E - ) 6,438 ~ 6,438 -

The company held no financial liabilities as at 31 March 2018.
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20 Financial risk review (continued)

Market risk

Market risk arises when changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity

- prices, will affect the company’s income or the valde.of its holdlngs of financial instruments.

i
The company’ s transacnons are all undertaken i in sterling and so it is not exposed to foreign exchange risk. It
holds no significant investments other than bank deposits. Other than cash. balances and the Revolvmg Credit
Facility, the company’s financial assets and liabilities are carried at fixed rates of interest and its opérating cash

" flows are consequently independent of changes in market interest rates.

Capital risk management
The company's capital structure consxsts of £21m of funds from shareholders asat 31 MaJ ch 2019 (2018: £1).

The company's pnmany objective when managing capital i is to safeguald the companys abnllty to contmue as a
going concern. .

In managing its capital, the company seeks to:

@) match the expected cash inflows from its assets thh the expected cash outflows from the company's’
liabilities; : : :

" (i)  maintain financial strength to support new busmess growth and satisfy the requnements of its customers,

suppliers and reculatons and

(iii)  retain financial ﬂexnblhty by maintaining strong liquidity.

21 Related party transactions

The company is required.to disclose transactions with related parties. Related parties are entities or individuals
who have the potential to control, indirectly control or significantly influence the company or to be controlled,
indirectly controlled or significantly influenced by tlie company.

“Supply Chain Coordlnanon Limited is a puvate limited ‘company, wholly owned by the Secretaly of State for

Health and Socnal Care, making it the company's ultimate controllmg party.

Details of the remuneration paid to Board Directors can be found in the Remuneratlon Repon on pages 24 to 29
and in Note 7 Directors' remuneration. - . .

Summary of transactions wnth other nelated parties

The Secretary of State for Health and Social Care, as the company's ultimate controlling party, is regaxded as a
related party. During the year, the company had some material transactions with entities for which the Secretary
of State for Health and Social Care is regarded as the parent Department. Most of these transactions have been
with the Department of Health and Social Care ("DHSC") the NHS Business Services Authorlty ("NHS BSA"), "

A _Publlc Health England NHS England, NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts,
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21 Related party transactions (continued)

Income Expenditure - Receivable Payable
£ 000 . £000° £000 - £000
DHSC ' o 36 - T .
Public Health England - 927 . L .
NHS England . : » - ‘ - 32 : .-
NHS Resolution - - VY - -
" NHS BSA ’ 18,035 2,266 - 1,874 2,047
NHS Trusts _ - 10 - -3
- NHS Foundation Trusts : - 14 : A 9
' 19,048 2,304 1,906 2,059

Heather Tierney-Moore was "the Chief Executive of Lancashire Care NHS Trust during the year and the Trust is

a customer of the NHS Supply Chain. Whilst that doesnot involve any transaction with the company durmg this

financial yeax thie Trust did spend appxox:mately £4.7 million with NHS Supply Chain.

Loans from related parties : .
Parent

2019 . : ' " £000
At start of period . ‘ : _ N
Draw downs ) ' . . . ' . : - 142,000 -

- At end of period ‘ ' o S . 142,000

Terms of loans from related partiés

The Secretary of State for Health and Social Care, the company's parent, has provided a Revolvmg Credit
Facility of £250m to the company. As at 31 -March 2019, the company had drawn down £142m. The final
repayment date of the facility is on 30 September 2020, Until that date, no part of the loan is répayable, unless
the company has an: opelatlonal cash balance of over £120m.

The rate of interest applicable to this ﬂexlble Joan facnllty is the mtelest rate determined by the reference to the

" National Loan Fund rate for loans up to one year prevailing on the date of the first utilisation of this Facility.

5

22 Parent and ultimate parent under takmg

The company's immediate and ultlmate parent 1s The Secxetary of State for Health and Socxal Care
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23 Nnn adjuéting events after the financial period
(a)  Acquisition of NHS Supply Chain

On 1 April 2019, the assets, liabilities, obllgatlons and rights of the NHS Supply Chain, managed by DHL
Supply Chain on behalf of the NHS BSA, .-were transferred to SCCL. The objective of this transfer was to
implement the optimum performance of the NHS Supply Chain through exploiting the collective bargammg
power of the NHS.

. . 3 000
Noin Current Assets - '
Property, plant and equipment . 4 ' ' } 16,685
. Current Asseéts : ‘ A . . ‘ )
Inventories o o . ’ - . . 187,393 :
Trade and other receivables : ’ A 373,147
Cash and ‘cash equivalents : . ' 68,606
Total Current Assets ’ ) ' ’ : 629,146
Current Liabilities ' ' . - o
~ Trade and other payables ' ' - ' (380,826)
. Loans : . . ) . (70,136)
Total Current Liabilities : . . (450,962) .
Non Current Liabilities . .
Provisions . .o o (12,269)
Total Non Cur rent Llabllmes ' - : (12,269)

Total Net Assets : . : : 182,600

Property, plant and equipment of £16.7m primarily relates to MRI Scanners.

Inventories of £187.4m mclude £70.1m of stock whlch has been built up to prepare, for the UK's exit from the
European Union. .

Trade and other receivables of £373.1m primarily comprises trade receivables of £245.0m, prepayments of
£67.8m, accrued income of £38. 6m other debtors of £7:5m and the NHS England Device Centralisation
Initiative of £12.2m. The NHS England Device .Centralisation Initiative is an initiative where NHS Trusts
receive various devices at cost price, and dny mar, gin is removed. £12 2m represents surplus fundmg remaining
due to under utilisation of the fund. -

Cash and cash equivalents of £68.6m relates to cash held at the bank. -

Trade and other payables of £380.8m pxedommantly relates to trade creditors of £139. 5m, accruals of £152 Sm
other creditors of £5.8m and contract liabilities of £75.1m.

Loans of £70.1m are due to the NHS BSA lelatmg to stock build in preparation for the UK's exit from the
European Union and are repayable within one year.

Provisions of £12.3m xelate toa dllapldatlons provnsmn of £3.3m and £9.0m relating to a pension liability.

The business had turnover of £2,088m for the year ended 31 March 2019 which relates to the sale of medical
equipment and consumables. . : .

E (b) Repayment of loan
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23 Non ad]ustmg events aften the financial per lOd (continued)

“On 13 September 2019, the company repaid £40m of the loan outstandmg from the Secretary of State f01 Health
and Social Care. The xemammg principal of the loan following repayment was £102m
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